


 
AGENDA 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
2501A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

August 22, 2024 
12:30 p.m. 

 
A. Call to Order  

B. Proof of Publication  

C. Establish Quorum  

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. July 1, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes  

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-10 – Adopting Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2024-11 – Adopting Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting Schedule 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2024-12 – Adopting Goals and Objectives 

3. Consider Approval of SUA Western Service Area Model Development and Fire Flow Analysis 
Scope of Services and Corresponding Consulting Services Agreement 

4. Consider Approval of Land Swap Agreement and Corresponding Engineer’s Report 

5. Consider Approval of PBGPD License Plate Reader Request and Flock Safety Property Agreement 

6. Consider Ratification of Execution of Avenir Charter School Plat 

7. Consider Approval of SPF Underground Agreement (Bypass Road) 

8. Consider Approval of Annual Engineer’s Report 

9. Discussion Regarding Basketball Court 

10. Legislative Update 

J. Change Orders 

1. Consider Approval of Latite Roofing Additional Work Authorization ($16,396) 

2. Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 001 ($177,972.80) 

3. Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 002 ($54,193.19) 

4. Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 003 ($17,484.48) 

5. Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 004 ($89,166.86) 

6. Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 005 ($79,985.50) 

7. Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 007 ($34,148.09) 

 

 

 



 

 

 

8. Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 008 ($10,986.92) 

9. Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 009 ($11,084.63) 

10. Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 010 ($1,105,079.95) 

11. Consider Approval of SPF Underground CO No 3 ($13,280.80) 

K. Clubhouse 

1. Clubhouse Management Update 

2. Discussion Regarding Proposed Club Fee Schedule for FY 2024/2025 

L. Administrative Matters 

M. Board Member Comments 

N. Adjourn 



Page 1



Palm Beach Post 

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Publication Date
2024-08-09

Subcategory
Miscellaneous Notices

AVENIR COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET AND
NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING.
The Board of Supervisors (the Board) of the Avenir Community Development District (the District) will hold a
public hearing on August 22, 2024, at 12:30 p.m. in The Oaks Center located at 2501A Burns Road, Palm
Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 for the purpose of hearing comments and objections on the adoption of the
budget of the District for Fiscal Year 2024/2025. A regular board meeting of the District will also be held at
that time where the Board may consider any other business that may properly come before it.
A copy of the agenda and budget may be obtained from the Districts website seven (7) days prior to the public
hearing/meeting or at the o ces of the District Manager, 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida
33410, Telephone: (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922, during normal business hours.
The public hearing and meeting are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the
provisions of Florida law for community development districts. The public hearing and meeting may be
continued to a date, time, and place to be speci ed on the record at the meeting. There may be occasions
when staff or Supervisors may participate by speaker telephone.
Any person requiring special accommodations at this public hearing and meeting because of a disability or
physical impairment should contact the District O ce at (561) 630-4922 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to
the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-
8770, for aid in contacting the District O ce.
Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at
the public hearing or meeting is advised that person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly,
the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and
evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice.
AVENIR COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
www.avenircdd.org
No. Aug. 2, 9, 2024

Page 6



Page 7



 Avenir
 Community Development District

Final Budget
      Fiscal Year 2024/2025

      October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



o

o
o

Page 26



 

SCOPE OF SERVICES  

Seacoast Utility Authority Western Service Area Model Development and Fire Flow Analysis 
 
Tobon Engineering

 
INTRODUCTION 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Tobon Engineering
 

Task 1 Project Management and Data Collection 

Task 2 Data Analysis 

Page 27



 

Task 3 Hydraulic Model Development and Analysis  

Task 4 Technical Memo 

 
Assumptions 

Page 28



 

Schedule 

Fee 
 

 
Tobon Engineering: Avenir Community Development District 

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



 

Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



 
 

AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 
 

 
 
 

SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE FIFTH 
SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEER’S REPORT  

 
 

ASSESSMENT AREA TWO 
 

Prepared for: 
Board of Supervisors 

AVENIR Community Development District 
 

 
Prepared by: 

 

 
 

BALLBÉ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
3564 N. Ocean Boulevard 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 

(954) 491-7811 
 

Project Number: 
201622 

 
July 28, 2024 

 

 

Page 54



ballbé & associates, inc. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

PART I INTRODUCTION ……………………..………..……………….…..…………… 1 

PART II GENERAL INFORMATION …………….….….……….……………………….. 2 

PART V CONCLUSION …………………………………….…………..………………… 9 

   

  

Page 55



ballbé & associates, inc. 

   

 
 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 
 

 
PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 

Exhibit A Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project Legal Description 
and Area Plan 

Exhibit B Avenir Development Parcel Location Exhibit (lands sold 
to Avenir CDD on 2021) 

Exhibit C PARCEL A-15 - PORTION OF TRACT O-4 

Exhibit D PARCEL A-16 - PORTIONS OF TRACTS O-1,O-16 & O-38 - 
OPEN SPACE TRACTS 

Exhibit E PARCEL A-16 - PORTIONS OF LOTS 7 THRU 15 INCLUSIVE 
AND LOTS 156 THRU 188 INCLUSIVE 

Exhibit F PARCEL A-18 - PORTION OF TRACT O-7 AND PORTION 
OF TRACT PARK -1 

Exhibit G PARCEL A-18 - PORTION OF LOTS 90 THRU 97 INCLUSIVE 
Exhibit H PARCEL A-21 – LAKE AREA 
Exhibit I PARCEL A-7 – TRACTS O-3 & O-7 
Exhibit J PARCEL A-8 - TRACTS O-14 & O-15 
Exhibit K PARCEL A-9 – TRACT O-3 

Exhibit L 

PARCEL A-15: 
 
LAKE TRACT W11 
LAKE MAINTENANCE TRACT LM11 
LAKE TRACT W13 
LAKE MAINTENANCE TRACT LM13 
LAKE TRACT W14 
LAKE MAINTENANCE TRACT LM14 

Exhibit M PARCEL A-18 - PORTION OF TRACTS W & LM 
Exhibit N PARCEL A-21 - TRACTS W1,W2,LM1 & LM2 LAKE AREA 
Exhibit O PARCEL D - TRACT RBE4 
Exhibit P TOWN CENTER PLAT - TRACT RW8 

 
 
  

Page 56



 
 

ballbé & associates, inc. 

1 

 
 
 

PART I: INTRODUCTION 
 
This Sixth Amendment to the Fifth Supplemental Engineer’s Report (the “Report”) 
was prepared by Ballbé & Associates, Inc. (the “District Engineer”) on behalf of 
the Avenir Community Development District Board of Supervisors (the “Board”), 
the governing body of the Avenir Community Development District (the “District”) 
for the purposes of describing the completed and proposed land conveyances 
between the District and Avenir Development, LLC (herein, the “Developer” or 
“AD”), as the same pertain to the Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project. 
 
This Report amends the Fifth Supplemental Engineer’s Report dated September 
25, 2020, as amended from time to time, to summarize the extent, nature, costs 
and benefits of said land conveyances for the Assessment Area Two – 2021B 
Project. 
 
Information provided in this Report was obtained by the District Engineer who has 
considered and in certain instances relied upon opinions, information and 
documentation prepared or supplied by others, which include public officials, 
public entities, representatives of Avenir Development, LLC and related entities 
(collectively the “Developer”), Special District Services, Inc. (the “District 
Manager”) and other professionals and contractors. 

 
 

Page 57



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

2 

 
PART II: GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 
1. Land Acquisition 2021B Bonds (Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project) 
 
The District issued its 2021B Bonds for the Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project to 
finance land acquisition.  The 2021B Bonds were secured by all the assessable  
lands within Assessment Area Two but excluding Parcels A-12, A-13 and A-14, the 
Golf Course Parcel and the Charter School Parcel (herein the “Assessment Area 
Two – 2021B Project Area”). 
 
Below please find the parcels within the Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project 
Area and the planned uses (refer to Exhibit A): 
 

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units 

A-10 & 
A-11 

65’ wide residential 155 

77’ wide residential 107 

A-15 (GL) 
50’ wide residential 358 

62’ wide residential 204 

A-18 80’ wide residential 103 

A-20  
55’ wide residential 75 

65’ wide residential 69 

A-21 50’ wide residential 194 

Golf Course Recreational 217.57 acres 
Charter 
School Educational 7.263 acres 

TOTALS = 1,265 units 
 
   
2. 2021 District Land Purchase Description 

As part of the Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project, the District acquired at fair 
market value certain parcels of land from the Developer on September 30, 2021 
by Special Warranty Deed recorded in O.R. Book 32950, Page 1580, of the Public 
Records of Palm Beach County, Florida and subsequently amended on April 5, 
2022 by Corrective Special Warranty Deed recorded in O.R. Book 33529, Page 

Page 58



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

3 

971, of the Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida (collectively, the “2021 
Deeds”), incorporated herein by reference. 
The parcels acquired by said 2021 Deeds are as follows: 
 

Parcel I.D. Description 

Lake 1 Parcel A-15 Lake #1 

Lake 5 Parcel A-15 Lake #5 

Lake 6 Parcel A-15 Lake #6 

Lake 7 Parcel A-15 Lake #7 

Lake 8 Parcel A-15 Lake #8 

Lake 9 Parcel A-15 Lake #9 

Lake 10 Parcel A-15 Lake #10 

Lake 11 Parcel A-15 Lake #11 

Lake 12 Parcel A-15 Lake #12 

Lake 13 Parcel A-15 Lake #13 

Lake 14 Parcel A-15 Lake #14 

Lake 15 Parcel A-15 Lake #15 

Lake 18 Parcel A-18 Lake 

Lake 20 Parcel A-20 Lake 

Lake 21 Parcel A-21 Lake 

Spine Road 4 Spine Road 4 right-of-way 
(Avenir Drive) 

Spine Road 5 Spine Road 5 right-of-way 
(Panther National Boulevard) 

Spine Road 6 Spine Road 6 right-of-way 
(Avenir Drive) 

Parcel A-21 Buffer Parcel A-21 PCD Buffer 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

4 

Please refer to Exhibit “B” to reference the parcels listed below sold to the District:  
 
 

Parcel I.D. Description 

Lake 18 Parcel A-18 Lake 

Lake 21 Parcel A-21 Lake 

Spine Road 4 Spine Road 4 right-of-way 
(Avenir Drive) 

Spine Road 6 Spine Road 6 right-of-way 
(Avenir Drive) 

 
 
As part of the Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project, the District paid $25,222,200 
for 168.148 acres of lands ($150,000.00 per acre), utilizing proceeds from the Series 
2021B Bonds issued by the District. 
 
 
3. 2024 District Land Conveyance to Developer 

The District intends to convey to the Developer portions of the certain parcels 
previously acquired that were mistakenly conveyed to the District by the 
Developer pursuant to the 2021 Deeds so that the Developer can convey the 
parcels to the different owners as intended in the recorded plat for said parcels 
or portions thereof. 
 
The portions of the parcels mistakenly conveyed to the District are described 
below: 
 

Page 60



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

5 

 
 
Please refer to following exhibits for the above listed parcel descriptions. 
 
 

 

 

2024 Developer Land Conveyance to District 

The Developer intends to convey to the District additional lands of value at no 
cost to District, the “Additional 2024 Parcels” (no compensation will be paid by 
the District for acquiring such tracts).   
 
  

Page 61



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

6 

The portions of the parcels to be conveyed to the District are described below: 
 

Page 62



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

7 

 
 
Please refer to following exhibits for the above listed parcel descriptions. 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 63



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

8 

 
Therefore, the net benefit to the District for the 2021 & 2024 land conveyances is 
as follows: 
 
 

Description Area 

Area acquired by District at no cost 23.637 acres 

Area conveyed by District at no cost 15.213 acres 

TOTAL BENEFIT TO THE DISTRICT = 8.424 acres 
 
 
The value received by the District in connection with 2024 conveyances far 
exceeds the value lost by the District conveyance to Developer (overall the 
District received an additional 8.424 acres at no cost).  Such conveyances 
benefit the property owners within the Assessment Area Two and the District 
ultimately received a surplus of land a no cost. 
 

 
  

Page 64



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

9 

 
 
PART III: CONCLUSION 
 
A. Benefits and Costs: 
 

The land acquisition and conveyance described above provides a direct 
and special benefit to all owners of the properties and residential parcels 
within Assessment Area Two.  The lands transferred to the Developer will 
not have a material impact on the operation of the public improvements 
financed by the Distrct.  The Additional 2024 Parcels will serve the same 
public purpose as the lands transferred to the Developer. 
 

B. Modifications to the Report: 
 

It may be necessary to make changes and modification to the planned 
improvements during the planning, permitting and construction stages of 
the public infrastructure.  It is not expected that the changes and 
modifications will significantly impact the information and conclusions 
contained in this report. 

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Engineer’s 
Report for the Avenir Community Development District. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
BALLBÉ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 
         Date:  7/28/2024 
Carlos J. Ballbé 
For the Firm 
Registered Engineer No. 41811 
State of Florida 
  

Page 65



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 

Exhibit A Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project Legal Description 
and Area Plan  

 
  

Page 66



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 

Exhibit B Avenir Development Parcel Location Exhibit (lands sold 
to Avenir CDD on 2021) 

 
 
 
  

Page 67



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit C PARCEL A-15 - PORTION OF TRACT O-4 

 
  

Page 68



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 

Exhibit D PARCEL A-16 - PORTIONS OF TRACTS O-1,O-16 & O-38 - 
OPEN SPACE TRACTS 

 
  

Page 69



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 

Exhibit E PARCEL A-16 - PORTIONS OF LOTS 7 THRU 15 INCLUSIVE 
AND LOTS 156 THRU 188 INCLUSIVE 

 
  

Page 70



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 

Exhibit F PARCEL A-18 - PORTION OF TRACT O-7 AND PORTION 
OF TRACT PARK -1 

 
 
  

Page 71



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit G PARCEL A-18 - PORTION OF LOTS 90 THRU 97 INCLUSIVE 

 
  

Page 72



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit H PARCEL A-21 – LAKE AREA 

 
  

Page 73



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit I PARCEL A-7 – TRACTS O-3 & O-7 

 
 
 
  

Page 74



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit J PARCEL A-8 - TRACTS O-14 & O-15 

 
 
 
  

Page 75



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit K PARCEL A-9 – TRACT O-3 

 
  

Page 76



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 

Exhibit L 

PARCEL A-15: 
 
LAKE TRACT W11 
LAKE MAINTENANCE TRACT LM11 
LAKE TRACT W13 
LAKE MAINTENANCE TRACT LM13 
LAKE TRACT W14 
LAKE MAINTENANCE TRACT LM14 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 77



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit M PARCEL A-18 - PORTION OF TRACTS W & LM 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 78



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit N PARCEL A-21 - TRACTS W1,W2,LM1 & LM2 LAKE AREA 

 
 
  

Page 79



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

24 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit O PARCEL D - TRACT RBE4 

 
 
 
  

Page 80



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION 
Exhibit P TOWN CENTER PLAT - TRACT RW8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



  PALM BEACH GARDENS POLICE DEPARTMENT 
             “COMMITTED TO PROFESSIONAL EXCELLENCE”   
   DOMINICK PAPE, CHIEF OF POLICE    

A State and Nationally Accredited Law Enforcement Agency  

Permission To Install License Plate Reader Technology 
 

The right-of-way (next to roadway) in the north and southbound lanes of Avenir Drive, south of Coral 
Isles Circle, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33418  

Page 82



(PCN# 52414214110020000 & 52414214120020000)

Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 1 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

 

THIS CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement” of “Contract”) made this ____      

day of  December 15th, 2022 between AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local 

unit of special-purpose government organized under the provisions of Chapter 190 Florida 

Statutes (herein called “Owner”) whose address is 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 

33410, and SPF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, INC., a Florida Corporation (herein called 

“Contractor”) whose address is 1220 SW Dyer Point Road, Palm City, FL 34990 agree as follows 

(each a “Party” and together “Parties”): 

WITNESSETH, that Owner and Contractor for the considerations hereinafter named 
covenant and agrees as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, permits, etc. as 
needed to perform all Work described in section 2 hereof for: 
 

AVENIR BYPASS ROAD – UNDERGROUND DRY UTILITIES 

  

All work to be performed in accordance with the contract between Owner and Contractor, and 
in accordance with the General Conditions, Plans and Specifications, and Addenda.  The 
Contractor agrees that he has examined the site of the Project and the plans & specifications for 
said work and made his own inspection and familiarized himself with the conditions under which 
said work is to be performed. If the Contractor discovers any discrepancies between the 
conditions at the site of the Project and the plans and specifications for said work, such 
discrepancies shall be promptly reported to the Owner. 
 
Section 2. The Contractor shall furnish all necessary and incidental labor, materials, 
scaffolding, tools, equipment, hoisting, surveying, etc. including all cleaning and daily removal of 
Contractors debris necessary for the execution and completion of (herein called the “Work”): 
 

Attachment "A" - Scope of Work 
Attachment “B” – Contract Documents  

 
 

Attachments incorporated herein by reference are made part of this Agreement. 
 
Section 3.  Time: It is understood and agreed that TIME is of the essence of this Agreement. 
The Contractor shall proceed with the Work and in every part and detail thereof in a prompt and 
diligent manner and shall do the several parts thereof at such times and in such orders as the 
Owner may direct. The Contractor shall and will wholly finish the Work on schedule as directed 
by the Owner’s Superintendent, Project Schedule, and Project Manager.  Contractor shall not be 
entitled to any time extensions for any delays caused or contributed by Contractor or attributable 

Page 86



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 2 

to items for which he is responsible.  Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional 
compensation for delays, regardless of cause. 
 
Section 4.  Contract Sum:  This is a fixed price contract whereby Owner shall pay Contractor in 
current funds for performance of the Contract the Contract Sum of Two Hundred Twenty Five 
Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($225,000.00) subject to the additions and deductions as 
provided for in this Agreement. 
 
Section 5.  Payment:  Based upon applications for payment submitted to the Owner by the 
Contractor, corresponding to Applications for payment submitted by the Owner to the 
Community Development District Engineer (the “CDD Engineer” of the “Engineer”), and 
Certificates for Payment issued by the CDD Engineer (if applicable), the Owner shall make 
progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the Contractor as provided below and 
elsewhere in the Agreement. 
 

Contractor shall submit Requisitions on or before the 20th of each month, for work 
projected through the end of that month, less ten percent (10.0%) retainage. Owner 
shall pay approved requisition amount within 20 days from Owner’s receipt of 
Certificate for Payment issued by CDD Engineer. 

 
Final Payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the 
Owner to the Contractor when the following conditions are satisfied:  
 

(1) the Contractor’s Work is fully performed in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents to the full satisfaction of the Owner, his agent and the CDD Engineer, 
including all “punch list” items,  
(2) the CDD Engineer has issued a Certificate for Payment covering the Contractor’s 
completed Work (if applicable),  
(3) all Contractor's vendors' Final Releases of Liens must be submitted to Owner prior to 
Final Payment. 
 

It is further agreed that no payment made under this Agreement shall be evidence of the 
performance of this Agreement, either wholly or in part, against any claim of the Owner, and no 
payment shall be construed to be an acceptance of any defective work.   
 
It is understood that as a condition of payment to the Contractor, Contractor shall provide the 
Owner with releases/discharges of lien, warranties, as-builts and such other documentation as 
may be required by Owner.  With its first request for payment, Contractor agrees to provide 
Owner with a list of sub-subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and materialmen.  The Owner 
reserves the right at its discretion to issue a joint check or to make direct payments to any 
supplier or debtor of Contractor, and upon issuance of the check, Contractor’s subcontractor and 
the supplier or debtor shall deliver a release of lien and bond rights.  The acceptance of final 
payment by Contractor shall constitute a full and general release of Owner of any and all claims. 

Page 87



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 3 

 
A. FAILURE TO PERFORM: Should the Contractor be adjudged bankrupt or make a general 

assignment for the benefit of creditors or should a petition under the Bankruptcy Act or 
any other act relating to insolvency be filed by or against Contractor, or should the, 
Contractor be at any time refuse or neglect to supply a sufficiency of properly skilled 
workmen or of materials of the proper quality and quantity, or fail in any respect to 
execute the Work with promptness and diligence or in compliance with the requirements 
of this Agreement, or fail in the performance of any agreements on his part herein 
contained, the Owner shall be at liberty, after twenty four (24) hours written notice (to 
the above-indicated or last known location or email address of the Contractor) to  
terminate the Contractor hereunder and to provide any such labor or materials necessary 
to complete the Work and deduct the cost thereof from any money due or thereafter to 
become due to the Contractor for the said work and to enter upon the premises and take 
possession of all materials and appliances of every kind whatsoever thereon, and to 
employ any other person or persons to finish the Work, and to provide the materials 
therefore, and in case of such termination of the Contractor, he shall not be entitled to 
receive any further payment under this Agreement until the said work shall be wholly 
finished, at which time, if the unpaid balance of the amount to be paid under this 
Agreement shall exceed the expense incurred by the Owner in finishing the Work, such 
excess shall be paid by the Owner to the Contractor, but if such expense shall exceed such 
unpaid balance the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. 
 

B. INDEMNIFICATION: TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITIED BY LAW, THE CONTRACTOR 
EXPRESSLY AGREES TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE OWNER AND THE 
CDD ENGINEER AND THEIR RESPECTIVE BOARD MEMBERS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, 
AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES HEREIN CALLED THE  INDEMNITEES" FROM AND AGAINST ANY 
AND ALL LOSS OR LIABILITY FOR A CLAIM, DAMAGE, EXPENSE, OR GOVERNMENTALLY 
IMPOSED FINE, PENALTY, ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION, OR OTHER ACTION ("CLAIM"), 
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATIORNEY'S FEES AND COURT COSTS, SUCH LEGAL EXPENSES 
TO INCLUDE COSTS INCURRED IN ESTABLISHING THE DEFENSE OR INDEMNIFICATION AND 
OTHER RIGHTS AGREED TO IN THIS PARAGRAPH: (1 ) TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE 
NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT OF, THE BREACH OR VIOLATION OF A STATUTE, ORDINANCE, 
GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION, STANDARD, OR RULE BY, OR THE BREACH OF CONTRACT 
BY CONTRACTOR OR ITS AGENT, EMPLOYEE, OR SUBCONTRACTOR OF ANY TIER AND (2) 
EVEN TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE JOINT, CONCURRENT, PROPORTIONATE, OR SOLE 
NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT OF, THE BREACH OR VIOLATION OF A STATUTE, ORDINANCE, 
GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION, STANDARD, OR RULE BY, OR THE BREACH OF CONTRACT 
BY ONE OR MORE OF THE INDEMNITEES, THEIR AGENT OR EMPLOYEE, OR ANY THIRD 
PARTY UNDER THE CONTROL OR SUPERVISION OF THE INDEMNITEES WHERE THE CLAIM 
IS FOR THE BODILY INJURY OR DEATH OF AN EMPLOYEE OF CONTRACTOR, ITS AGENT, OR 
ITS SUBCONTRACTOR OF ANY TIER. 

 

Page 88



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 4 

C. INSURANCE: Prior to commencing any work or operations in connection with this 

Agreement, Contractor shall purchase and maintain throughout the term of this 

Agreement, the insurance coverage specified below:  

 

1. Standard Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-
owned and hired automobiles, trucks, and trailers with a per occurrence limit of 
liability of not less than $2,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage. 

 

2. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance with statutory 
workers’ compensation coverage (including occupational disease) and employer’s 
liability limits in accordance with applicable state law but in no event less than 
$2,000,000 each accident/$2,000,000 disease-each employee/$2,000,000 
disease-policy limit. 

 

3. Commercial General Liability Insurance in a form providing coverage not less than 
the standard ISO commercial general liability insurance policy CG 00 01 
(“Occurrence Form”), including insurance for premises, operations, independent 
contractors, products-completed operations (explosion, collapse and 
underground coverage if applicable), and contractual liability.  Such insurance 
must not include any exclusion for work performed by the Contractor (e.g., 
exterior height exclusion for Contractor providing exterior façade work; 
residential exclusion for Contractor providing residential work) or any Action Over 
or similar exclusion.  Excess or Umbrella Liability Insurance shall provide coverage 
that is no less restrictive than that required above and shall be available in excess 
of Employer’s Liability Insurance and Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance.      

 

4. The limits of the commercial general liability policy, and any excess or umbrella 
liability policy, shall be for not less than $5,000,000.00.  Total required limits may 
be achieved by a primary policy or the combination of a primary policy and excess 
policy(ies), so long as the primary policy has a limit of not less than $1 million.   

 

5. Each policy required under this Section, except the workers’ compensation policy, 
shall name Owner, its affiliates, joint ventures, officers, directors, agents, and 
employees as additional insureds, and will name as additional insureds any other 
person or entity Owner is required to indemnify or to name as an additional 
insured including any successors and assigns of Owner (the “Additional Insureds”).  
The insurance afforded to the Additional Insureds shall be written on Form CG 20 
10 04 13 and CG 20 37 04 13 or their equivalent, and the additional insured 
endorsements must not require a direct contractual relationship between the 
Contractor and the additional insured(s). The insurance afforded to the Additional 
Insureds shall be primary and non-contributory to any other insurance or self-
insurance, including any deductible, maintained by, provided to, or available to 
the Additional Insured(s). Specifically, Contractor shall have its primary policies 

Page 89



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 5 

endorsed to cause the coverage afforded to the Additional Insureds under such 
policies to be primary to and non-contributory with any other insurance or self-
insurance, including any deductible, maintained by, provided to, or available to 
the Additional Insured(s).  Further, Contractor shall have its excess/umbrella 
policy(ies) endorsed to cause the coverage afforded to the Additional Insureds 
under such policy(ies) to be first tier excess/umbrella coverage immediately above 
the primary coverage provided to Contractor and not concurrent with, 
contributing with or excess of any other insurance maintained by, provided to, or 
available to the Additional Insured(s), whether such other insurance is provided 
on a primary, excess or other basis.   
 
It is expressly understood by the Parties to this Agreement that it is the intent of 
the Parties that any insurance, whether primary, excess or on any other basis, 
obtained by the Additional Insureds is deemed excess, non-contributory and not 
co-primary or co-excess in relation to the coverage(s) procured by the Contractor 
or any sub-subcontractors.  
 

   All policies required by this Agreement shall include a waiver of subrogation clause 

in favor of the Additional Insureds, which clause shall also apply to the Additional 

Insureds’ officers, agents and employees. 

 

6. All policies required by this Agreement shall be provided by an insurance 
company(ies) acceptable to Owner and authorized to do business in the state in 
which the operations are performed.  Such insurance company(ies) shall carry a 
minimum A.M. Best rating of A VII.   

  

7. Prior to commencing work, Contractor shall provide Owner with certificates of the 
insurance required under this Section. Such certificates shall list the various 
coverages, the limits required by Paragraphs 1, 2 and 4. above, and evidence the 
use of additional insured endorsements CG 20 10 04 13 and CG 20 37 04 13 or 
their equivalent (with no contractual privity requirement) on the face of the 
certificate.  These certificates and the insurance policies required by this Section 
shall contain a provision that the coverages afforded under the policies will not be 
canceled or allowed to expire until at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice 
has been given to the Owner.  A failure to detect that Contractor has not 
submitted certificates, or proper certificates, or otherwise is not in compliance 
with the insurance requirements of this section, shall not be considered a waiver 
or other impairment of Owner’s rights under this Agreement.  Upon request, the 
Contractor shall furnish Owner with copies of all additional insured endorsements.   

 

8. Contractor agrees that the insurance required by this Section will be maintained 
continuously from the commencement of the Work until the entire Work to be 

Page 90



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 6 

performed by the Contractor under this Agreement is completed and accepted by 
Owner.  Further, Contractor will maintain Completed Operations coverage for 
itself and each Additional Insured for at least two (2) years after completion of the 
Work.   

 

9. Contractor shall require each sub-subcontractor to procure and maintain the 
same insurance coverages required of the Contractor and shall not permit any 
sub-subcontractor to start any part of the Work without obtaining certificates 
confirming that such coverages are in effect. 

 

10. If the Contractor fails to procure and maintain the insurance required by this 
Section, in addition to the option of declaring Contractor in default for breach of 
a material provision of the Agreement, Owner shall have the right, but not the 
duty, to procure and maintain as the Contractor’s expense, the same insurance or 
other insurance that provides the equivalent protection, and Contractor shall 
furnish all necessary information to make effective and maintain such insurance.  
At the option of the Owner, the cost of said insurance shall be charged against and 
deducted from any monies then due or to become due to Contractor or Owner 
shall notify Contractor of the cost of such insurance and Contractor shall promptly 
pay such cost. 

 
11. In the event that the insurance company(ies) issuing the policy(ies) required by 

this Agreement deny coverage to the Owner or any other person or entity Owner 
is required to name as an additional insured, the Contractor will, upon demand by 
the Owner, defend and indemnify the Owner and/or any other person or entity 
Owner is required to name as an additional insured at the Contractor’s expense.         

 
D. TAXES:  Contractor shall be solely responsible for the payment of all taxes, withholdings 

and contributions required of Owner or Contractor by the Federal Social Security Act and 
the Unemployment Compensation Law or other similar state or federal laws, with respect 
to contractor’s employees or others employed, directed or contracted for by contractor 
in the performance of the Work.  Contractor shall pay all sales taxes, use taxes, excise 
taxes or similar taxes which may now or hereafter be assessed against the labor, material 
or services used or employed by Contractor or others in the execution of the Contract or 
the completion of the Work.  Any sales tax exemptions obtained by Owner will be credited 
to Owner for Work performed under the Contract. 

 
E. CHANGES IN THE WORK:  Owner may, without invalidating the Contract, order, in writing, 

additions, deletions or modifications of the Work from time to time (hereinafter referred 
to as a “Change Order”).  All Change Orders must be in writing and signed by Owner in 
order to be binding on Owner.  Contractor shall not make any alterations in the Work, 
including modifications necessitated by applicable codes, laws, rules or regulations, 
unless documented by a Change Order.  Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase 

Page 91



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 7 

in the Contract Price or any extension of the Completion Date in connection with any 
Change Orders due to alterations which are the responsibility of Contractor hereunder.  
All other Change Orders shall specify the adjustment, if any, which is to be made on the 
Contract Price or the Completion Date.  All alterations approved by Owner shall be subject 
to all of the terms of the Contract.  Owner shall determine all permitted adjustments in 
the Contract Price by a written Change Order specifying a fixed sum executed by Owner 
and accepted by Contractor.  Contractor shall not be entitled to any extensions to the 
Completion Date or increase in the Contract Price unless approved by a Change Order.  
Owner may unilaterally issue Change Orders to document any adjustment in the Contract 
Price due to offsets or deductions permitted by the Contract.   
 

F. ASSIGNMENT: The Contractor shall not let, assign, or transfer this Agreement or any part 
thereof or any interest therein, without the written consent of the Owner, and the 
Contractor agrees that in the event that any part of the Work included in this Agreement 
is sub-let by him, he will exact from his Sub--contractor compliance with the General 
Conditions, Drawings, Plans, and Specifications, together with all the provisions of this 
Agreement, and that he will execute with his Sub-contractor a contract by which the letter 
shall expressly agree to this provision. 

 
G. OSHA: The Contractor further agrees that he will, during the performance of his work 

comply with all local, State and Federal wages, environment, and safety requirements, 
including OSHA, and programs of Contractor, and shall indemnify the Owner, their 
officers, agents, and employees, and hold them harmless from any and all liability, suits, 
actions, demands (just or unjust), any and all damages and any and all costs or fees on 
account of injuries to person or property, including accidental death, arising out of or in 
connection with the Work, or by reason of the operations under this Agreement.  
 

H. GUARANTEE: The Contractor warrants that the Work will be performed in a good and 
workmanlike manner and in compliance with applicable laws/codes, and will be of good 
quality and fit for the intended use, free from faults or defects of any kind. Before final 
payment is made, the Contractor agrees to execute a written guarantee for his work, 
agreeing to make good, without cost, any and all defects due to imperfect workmanship 
or materials, which may appear during the period of guarantee required to be given by 
the Contractor to the Owner.  Sub-Contractor warrants its Scope of Contractor on the 
same terms, and for the same period, as Contractor warrants the work to Owner under 
the Contract Documents. Subcontractor shall perform all warranty obligations assumed 
by Contractor under the Owner Contract Documents, and Subcontractor's work shall be 
guaranteed for a minimum period of one year after occupancy, or as otherwise specified 
by statute. Contractor shall ensure that all manufacturers' warranties remain intact and 
available for any equipment or materials furnished through Contractor. The guarantee 
period begins upon project substantial completion and is for a period of 1 year if no 
written guarantee is received from Contractor. 

 

Page 92



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 8 

I. ARBITRATION:  All claims or disputes between Owner and the Contractor arising out of or 

relating to the Project or any Contractor, or the breach thereof, shall be decided by 

arbitration in accordance with the expedited construction industry arbitration rules of the 

American Arbitration Association currently in effect unless the Parties mutually agree 

otherwise and subject to an initial presentation of the claim or dispute to the Engineer, if 

any, for resolution.  Notice of the demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the 

other Party and with the American Arbitration Association and shall be made within a 

reasonable time after the dispute has arisen.  The award rendered by the arbitrator (s) 

shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in 

any court having jurisdiction thereof.  Except by written consent of the person or entity 

sought to be joined, no arbitration shall include by consolidation, joinder or in any other 

manner, any person or entity not a party to the Contract under which such arbitration 

arises, unless it is shown at the time the demand for arbitration is filed that (i) such person 

or entity is substantially involved in a common question of fact or law, (ii) the presence of 

such person or entity is required if complete relief is to be accorded in the arbitration, 

and (iii) the interest or responsibility of such person or entity in the matter is not 

insubstantial.  This agreement to arbitrate shall be specifically enforceable in any court of 

competent jurisdiction. 

 

J. CONTRACT CHANGES: No deletions or changes that may be made to any part of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made on all copies thereof and a clear statement 
endorsed upon the same giving the date upon which it was made, and if made after the 
execution of this Agreement, shall be signed by the original signatories hereto or by other 
person duly authorized in writing. Neither party shall have the authority to orally waive 
this provision. 
 

K. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION:  Each of the following occurrences shall constitute an event 
of default (“Event of Default”) by Contractor under this Agreement: (i) a breach by 
Contractor of any covenant, warranty or agreement contained in this Agreement or any 
covenant, warranty or agreement contained in any other Contract or agreement between 
Owner and Contractor (or an affiliated company) which remains uncured for five (5) days 
after notice from Owner, (ii) the commencement of any proceeding by or against 
Contractor, as debtor, under any applicable insolvency, receivership or bankruptcy laws, 
or (iii) a work stoppage due to strike, boycott, labor dispute, governmental moratorium, 
material shortage or similar causes beyond the control of Owner.  At any time after the 
occurrence of an Event of Default, Owner shall be entitled to do any one or more of the 
following: (i) suspend further payments to the Contractor until the Work is completed, (ii) 
terminate the Contract without waiving the right to recover damages against Contractor 
for its breach of the Contract, (iii) obtain specific performance of the Contractor’s 
obligations under the Contract, (iv) obtain any other available legal or equitable remedies, 
or (v) provide any labor, material or services required to complete all or a portion of the 
Work by any method the Owner may deem expedient, without terminating the Contact, 

Page 93



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 9 

and deduct or offset the cost thereof (including compensation for Owner’s increased 
administrative expenses) from any sums then or thereafter due to Contractor under the 
Contract or under any other Contract or agreement between Owner and Contractor (or 
any affiliated company); provided, however, that if such cost shall exceed the unpaid 
balance of the Contract Price, Contractor shall immediately pay the difference to Owner 
upon demand (which sum shall bear interest at the highest lawful rate until paid).  In all 
such events Owner shall have the right to enter upon the premises and take possession 
of all equipment, materials and supplies, for the purpose of completing the Work, and 
may employ any other person or persons to finish all or a portion of the Work and provide 
the materials therefor.  Contractor grants Owner a lien and security interest in all 
equipment, materials and supplies, of Contractor located on the Project to secure 
performance of Contractor under the Contract. 
 

L. COST INCREASES: Contractor will not be entitled to an extension of contract time and/or 
an increase in contract price in the event its performance is made impracticable by events 
beyond all Parties' control including without limitation, war, or threat of terrorism, forces 
of nature, material shortages, or material price escalations due to shortages or 
unavailability. Moreover, Owner and Contractor acknowledge that weather events 
including, without limitation, named storms or hurricanes or market industry conditions 
may impact the availability of material components that have been specified for inclusion 
in the project. As such, it may be likely that materials will be subject to substantial price 
increases and/or limited availability or delays in availability. In the event such price 
increases, limited availability or delays in availability occur, Contractor shall not be 
entitled to an increase in contract time, contract price or both, unless and until the Owner 
approves and funds payment for such increases by written Change Order and delivery of 
payment. 
 

M. LIMIT ON DAMAGES: Owner shall not be liable to the Contractor for delay to Contractor's 
work by act, neglect or default of the Owner or the CDD Engineer, or other 
subcontractors, or by reason of fire or other casualty, or on account of riots, or strikes, or 
other combined action of the workmen or others, or on account of any acts of God, or 
any other cause, beyond Contractor's control, or on account of any circumstances caused 
or contributed to by the Contractor. In any event, Owner’s liability for delays shall 
expressly exclude consequential or incidental damages sustained by Contractor or any 
other party. Should Contractor be delayed in the prosecution of the work by the act, 
neglect or default of the Owner, or CDD Engineer, or by any damage caused by the 
elements, act of God, and/or any casualty for whim the Contractor is not responsible, 
then the time fixed for the completion of the work pursuant to the terms of this 
agreement may be extended for a period equivalent to the time lost to the extent not 
concurrently delayed by Contractor. No time extension shall become operative unless a 
claim therefore is presented in writing to Owner within seventy-two (72) hours of the 
beginning of delay, and such claim is approved in writing by Contractor and Owner. 
  

Page 94



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 10 

N. SEVERABILITY: If any provision or portion of such provision of this Agreement, or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstance is for any reason held invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall 
not be affected. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 
hereto with respect to the matters covered herein. No other agreement, representations, 
warranties, or other matters, oral or written, shall be deemed to bind the parties hereto. 
The Owner and the Contractor for themselves, their successors, administrators and 
assigns, here agree to the full performance of the covenants of the Agreement. 
 

O. NOTICES: Any notices, requests or other communications required or permitted to be 
given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand, by a widely recognized 
national overnight courier service, mailed by United States registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed to each Party at its address as 
set forth below: 
 

 To Owner:   AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
    2501A Burns Road 
    Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 
    Attn: Jason Pierman, District Manager 
 
 With Copy To:  BILLING, COCHRAN, LYLES, MAURO & RAMSEY, P.A. 
    515 East Las Olas Boulevard, Suite 600 
    Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301    
    Attn: Michael J. Pawelczyk, Esq., District Counsel 
 
 To Contractor:  SPF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, INC. 
    1220 SW Dyer Point Rd. 
    Palm City, FL 34990 
    Attn: Scott Fruggiero 
 

Any such notice, request or other communication shall be considered given or delivered, 
as the case may be: (a) if by hand delivery, when the copy of the notice is receipted; (b) if 
by overnight courier delivery, the day on which the notice is actually received by the Party; 
(c) if by deposit in the United States mail, two (2) business days after it is posted with the 
United States Postal Service. 

 
Rejection or other refusal to accept or inability to deliver because of changed address of 
which no notice was given shall be deemed to be receipt of the notice, request or other 
communication.  By giving at least five (5) days prior written notice thereof, any Party may 
from time to time at any time change its mailing address or facsimile number hereunder. 
 

P. PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND: The Contractor shall secure a Section 255.05 

Florida Statutes, Payment and Performance Bond (“Performance Bond”) in the full 

Page 95



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 11 

amount of the Contract Price (100%) prior to initiating construction, in accordance with 

said statute, said bond naming the CDD as the oblige, and in a form compliant with that 

which is provided in Section 255.05 Florida Statutes.  The Performance Bond must be 

callable by the CDD. The Contractor understands and acknowledges that Florida law 

requires this bond in that the Work will be a public work upon assignment to the CDD.  

The Performance Bond shall remain in effect and valid until the Work is completed and 

certified as complete by the Engineer and all Notices to CDD, Notices of Nonpayment, 

liens or otherwise, have been satisfied to the satisfaction of the Engineer. 

 

Q. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY: The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the Owner, the 

Avenir Community Development District, is a local unit of special-purpose government 

organized under the provisions of Chapter 190 Florida Statutes.  Contractor acknowledges 

that the CDD is a “state agency or subdivision” as defined in Section 768.28, Florida 

Statutes, and is afforded the protections, immunities and limitations of liability afforded 

the Owner thereunder. Nothing herein is intended or should be construed as a waiver of 

sovereign immunity by any Party, or assignee thereof, to which sovereign immunity may 

be applicable. 

 
R.  PUBLIC RECORDS:  

 
(a) Contractor shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida 

Statutes, comply with the public records laws of the State of Florida, and specifically 
shall: 

1. Keep and maintain public records required by the Owner to perform 
the services or work set forth in this Agreement; and 

2. Upon the request of the Owner’s custodian of public records, provide 
the Owner with a copy of the requested records or allow the records 
to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does 
not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as 
otherwise provided by law; and 

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except 
as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and 
following completion of the Agreement if the Contractor does not 
transfer the records to the Owner; and 

4. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to the District, 
all public records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain 
public records required by the Owner to perform the service or work 
provided for in this Agreement.  If the Contractor transfers all public 
records to the Owner upon completion of the Agreement, the 
Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt 

Page 96



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 12 

or confidential and exempt from public disclosure requirements. If the 
Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
Agreement, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for 
retaining public records.  All records stored electronically must be 
provided to the Owner, upon request from the Owner’s custodian of 
public records, in a format that is compatible with the information 
technology systems of the Owner. 
 

(b) Contractor acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy public records 
relating to this Agreement must be made directly to the Owner pursuant to 
Section 119.0701(3), Florida Statutes.  If notified by the Owner of a public 
records request for records not in the possession of the Owner but in 
possession of the Contractor, the Contractor shall provide such records to the 
Owner or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable 
time.  Contractor acknowledges that should Contractor fail to provide the 
public records to the District within a reasonable time, Contractor may be 
subject to penalties pursuant to Section 119.10, Florida Statutes.   
 

(c) IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS AGREEMENT/CONTRACT, THE CONTRACTOR MAY 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS FOR THE OWNER 
AT: 

 
SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INC. 
2501A BURNS ROAD 
PALM BEACH GARDENS, FLORIDA 33410 
TELEPHONE: 561-630-4922 
EMAIL: FWARE@SDSINC.ORG 
 

S. SCRUTINIZED COMPANY LIST:  

 

(a)        In executing this Agreement, the Contractor certifies that it is not listed on either 

the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with 

Activities in Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to Section 215.473, 

Florida Statutes, that it does not have business operations in Cuba or Syria, and that is not 

engaged in a boycott of Israel. 

 

(b)        Pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the Contractor agrees that the CDD 

may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause if the Contractor is found to have 

Page 97

mailto:FWARE@SDSINC.ORG


Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 13 

(1) submitted a false certification above or pursuant to Section 287.135(5), Florida 

Statutes; or (2) if the Contractor is placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in 

Sudan List, the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, 

or the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List; or (3) if the Contractor is engaged 

in a boycott of Israel; or (4) if the Contractor has been engaged in business operations 

with Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

 

T. E-VERIFY: 

 

The Contractor, on behalf of itself and its subcontractors, hereby warrants compliance 

with all federal immigration laws and regulations applicable to their employees.  The 

Contractor further agrees that the Owner is a public employer subject to the E-Verify 

requirements provided in Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and such provisions of said 

statute are applicable to this Agreement, including, but not limited to registration with 

and use of the E-Verify system.  The Contractor agrees to utilize the E-Verify system to 

verify work authorization status of all newly hired employees.  Contractor shall provide 

sufficient evidence that it is registered with the E-Verify system before commencement 

of performance under this Agreement.  If the Owner has a good faith belief that the 

Contractor is in violation of Section 448.09(1), Florida Statutes, or has knowingly hired, 

recruited, or referred an alien that is not duly authorized to work by the federal 

immigration laws or the Attorney General of the United States for employment under this 

Agreement, the Owner shall terminate this Agreement.  The Contractor shall require an 

affidavit from each subcontractor providing that the subcontractor does not employ, 

contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien.  The Contractor shall retain a 

copy of each such affidavit for the term of this Agreement and all renewals thereof.  If the 

Owner has a good faith belief that a subcontractor of the Contractor is in violation of 

Section 448.09(1), Florida Statutes, or is performing work under this Agreement has 

knowingly hired, recruited, or referred an alien that is not duly authorized to work by the 

federal immigration laws or the Attorney General of the United States for employment 

under this Agreement, the Owner promptly notify the Contractor and order the 

Contractor to immediately terminate its subcontract with the subcontractor.  The 

Contractor shall be liable for any additional costs incurred by the Owner as a result of the 

termination of any contract, including this Agreement, based on Contractor’s failure to 

comply with the E-Verify requirements referenced in this subsection. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed these general conditions as of 

the date first above written. 

Page 98



 Page 14 

WITNESSES: 

 

 OWNER: 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose 

government organized under the provisions 

of Chapter 190 Florida Statutes 

   

 

Print 

Name: 

  By:  

  Name: Virginia Cepero, Chairperson 

 

 

 
 

Board of Supervisors 

Print 

Name: 

  Dated:  

 

WITNESSES: 

 

 CONTRACTOR: 

SPF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, INC., a Florida 

corporation 

   

 

Print 

Name: 

  By:  

  Name: Scott Fruggiero 

 

 

 Title: President 

Print 

Name: 

  Dated:  

 

  

Page 99



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 15 

 
ATTACHMENT "A" 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
Provide all labor, material, tools, staging, licenses, surveying, permits, taxes, hoisting, equipment, 
and supervision required for proper and complete performance of the Work.   
 

• Prepare, submit and process applications as necessary to obtain building permit from the City of 
Palm Beach Gardens Building Department as required to perform the Work. 

• Contractor required to take densities while backfilling the trenches as required by Geotechnical 
Engineer to certify the compaction of the fill.  Contractor to backfill trenches with structural 
material (material not having more than 5% organic content). 

• Install all dry utilities required improvements for the construction of the backbone system.  

• Process documents required to final inspection and permit closeout.  

• All material shall be warranted for a period of one (1) year after final inspection is obtained. 
 
Included in the Scope of Work is all field surveying, construction layout and as-builts necessary to perform 
the Work in accordance with the Plans and Specifications attached as prepared by the Engineer-of-Record 
or as may be modified at the direction of the Owner or applicable regulatory permitting agencies.  Work 
includes all necessary revisions to the as-builts, inspections, and work required to certify the Work to the 
permitting agencies. 
 
Work includes the cost of cost of the densities and testing required to certify the completion of the Work.  
Contractor to coordinate with testing lab and Owner the required inspections and testing as necessary to 
obtain final certification of the required improvements.  Cost of payment and performance bond shall also 
be provided. 
 
 

  

Page 100



Owner_______   Contractor_______ 

 Page 16 

 
ATTACHMENT "B" 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

 
 
 

Page 101



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

1 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

Legend:

New Street Light Pole-------------
New Hand-Hole --------------------
New UG PVC & Cable -------------
New Streetlight --------------------
New PMTX --------------------------
New 10ft Easement ---------------  

Legend:

New Street Light Pole-------------
New Hand-Hole --------------------
New UG PVC & Cable -------------
New Streetlight --------------------
New PMTX --------------------------
New 10ft Easement ---------------  

Legend:

New Street Light Pole-------------
New Hand-Hole --------------------
New UG PVC & Cable -------------
New Streetlight --------------------
New PMTX --------------------------
New 10ft Easement ---------------  

SALES REP: DEIGO FEBRES

FEEDER: ACREAGE (06761)

EASEMENT WILL BE 
REQUIRED

FEEDER: ACREAGE (06761)

EASEMENT WILL BE 
REQUIRED

Page 102



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

2 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

PAGE-2

A

A

1

3

A

2

A

4

A

5

PAGE 5

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 1 – 5: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON BLACK TAPERED 
CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE 
UNLESS WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V CIRCUITS, CHANGE 
THE RELAY PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF 
LIGHTS ON THAT RELAY. CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL LOCATIONS PRIOR 
LED INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY RESTORATION REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES

24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

1
0

0
'

1
6

0
'

1
3

0
'

SL HH

 COOPER MESA 150W 
4000K 14,911L 

 BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 
21' (15' 6" MH).

Page 103



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

3 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

PAGE-3

9

8

7

6

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 6 – 9: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON BLACK TAPERED 
CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE 
UNLESS WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

LOC A: INSTALL 24" SL HH

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V CIRCUITS, CHANGE 
THE RELAY PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF 
LIGHTS ON THAT RELAY. CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL LOCATIONS PRIOR 
LED INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY RESTORATION REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES P
A

G
E 

4

PAGE 6

24" HH 24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

A

100'

160'

Page 104



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

4 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 10 – 20: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON 
BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED 
AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE UNLESS WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING 
PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

LOC B: INSTALL 24" SL HH

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY 
HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V 
CIRCUITS, CHANGE THE RELAY PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE 
LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF LIGHTS ON THAT RELAY. 
CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL 
LOCATIONS PRIOR LED INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR 
ANY RESTORATION REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES

PAGE-4

10

11

12

13

15

16

19

20

18

17

P
A

G
E 

3

P
A

G
E 

5

24" HH

24" HH24" HH

24" HH 24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

24" HH24" HH

24" HH

A

24" HH

14

115'

35'

115' 160'

80' 80'

2
5

'

70'

6
5

'

95'

B

Page 105



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

5 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 21 – 32: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON BLACK 
TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW 
SL POLE UNLESS WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V CIRCUITS, CHANGE 
THE RELAY PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT 
OF LIGHTS ON THAT RELAY. CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL LOCATIONS 
PRIOR LED INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY RESTORATION 
REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES

PAGE-5

A

22
A

24

A

21

A

23

A

25

A

30

A
28

A

29

A

31

A

27

A 32

A

26

PAGE 2

P
A

G
E 

4

24" HH

24" HH 24" HH

24" HH
24" HH

24" HH24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

150'

150'

115'

200'

9
5

'

9
5

'

30'

100'

1
2

5
'1

2
5

'
6

0
'

9
0

'

5
0

'

PAGE 7

Page 106



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

6 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

PAGE-6

33 34

35

36

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 33 – 36: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON BLACK TAPERED 
CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE 
UNLESS WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

LOC 34: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON BLACK TAPERED 
CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE 
UNLESS WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V CIRCUITS, CHANGE 
THE RELAY PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF 
LIGHTS ON THAT RELAY. CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL LOCATIONS PRIOR 
LED INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY RESTORATION REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES

PAGE 3

24" HH
24" HH

24" HH

24" HH

8
0

'

Page 107



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

7 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 37 – 42: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON BLACK TAPERED 
CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE 
UNLESS WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V CIRCUITS, CHANGE THE 
RELAY PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF LIGHTS 
ON THAT RELAY. CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL LOCATIONS PRIOR 
LED INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY RESTORATION REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES

PAGE-7

A

37
A

38

A

39

A

40

A

41

A

42

PAGE 9

24" HH 24" HH

24" HH
24" HH

24" HH 24" HH

1
2

0
'

8
5

'

8
5

'

50'

1
1

0
'

1
1

0
'

1
2

0
'

PAGE 5

Page 108



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

8 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 43 – 47: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON BLACK TAPERED 
CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE 
UNLESS WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V CIRCUITS, CHANGE 
THE RELAY PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF 
LIGHTS ON THAT RELAY. CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL LOCATIONS PRIOR 
LED INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY RESTORATION REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES

PAGE-8

A
44

47

45

A

43

P
A

G
E 

9

46

A

24" HH

24" HH

24" HH 24" HH

24" HH

1
2

0
'

9
0

'

65'

1
2

0
'

PAGE 10

Page 109



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

9 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 48 – 54: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON BLACK TAPERED 
CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE UNLESS 
WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V CIRCUITS, CHANGE THE RELAY 
PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF LIGHTS ON THAT 
RELAY. CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL LOCATIONS PRIOR LED 
INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY RESTORATION REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES

PAGE-9

545453

5252

51

494948

50

P
A

G
E 

8

24" HH 24" HH

24" HH

24" HH
24" HH

24" HH24" HH

1
3

5
' 1

9
0

'

7
0

'
1

2
5

'

1
3

5
'

1
1

0
'

1
1

0
'

PAGE 11

PAGE 7

Page 110



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

10 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 55 – 56: FPL TO INSTALL AREA 17,500L 4000K ON BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33' 
(24' MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE UNLESS WITHIN 10FT 
OF EXISTING PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

LOC C: INSTALL 24" SL HH

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V CIRCUITS, CHANGE 
THE RELAY PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF 
LIGHTS ON THAT RELAY. CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL LOCATIONS PRIOR 
LED INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY RESTORATION REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES

PAGE-
10

5555

PAGE 8

P
A

G
E 

1
1

56

24" HH

24" HH24" HH

1
4

5
'

1
1

5
'

60'

C

Page 111



 AS-BUILT CREW PRINT

Request CAVT Transfer?

Tele. Attachment Per

Telephone Co. Job No.

PERMIT

REQ'D

Easement?   Yes        No

 Tree Work?   Yes        No

Survey/Stake?   Yes         No

 Designer/Stake?Yes         No

Work with SMO?Yes        No

CT/Special Mtr?  Yes        No

ALL REQUIRED GROUND RODS HAVE BEEN DRIVEN & VERIFIED TO
BE WITHIN FPL STANDARDS, VALUES ARE SHOWN AT ALL LOCATIONS.

FOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATEFOREMAN'S SIGNATURE  DATE

JOB CERTIFIED COMPLETED AS SHOWN ON THIS AS-BUILT
PRINT. MATERIAL CHANGES SHOWN ON ROS

 SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE  DATE

 AS-BUILT COPY

INITIALS CERT. DATE

INACCESSIBLE 13 kV FUTURE 23 kV 23 kV

FPL

Designed by:

Drawn by:

Date:

Dwg No.Check by:

Rural Location Sec. TWP.

SCALE: St. Lt MAP No.

S,R. E.

Pri Map No.

WR M/A

Requested Tel. Co. Set Poles ?

Requested Tel. Co. Transfer ?

YES

YES

YES

YES

NO

NO

NO

NO

City

WMD

County Rd.

RR Xing

County Air

DR. Dist.

State Road

Transm.

FAA

POLE LINE FEET

POLE LINE FT. ON TRANSM. POLES

TLM/LDS MODEL No.

TRENCH FT.

DUCT BANK FT.

Map Posting? Posted by:

SALT SPRAY

 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33412
INSTALL (60) NEW SL POLES & (60) NEW FIXTURES FOR AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – BYPASS RD
NORTHLAKE BLVD COCONUT BLVD

NICHOLAS A HERNANDEZ 04/30/24

xxx

## ## ##

N.T.S MAP#

########### ###

0'

0'

-

0'

0'

11 OF 11

PAGE-2

PAGE-3 PAGE-4 PAGE-5

PAGE-6 PAGE-7

PAGE-8 PAGE-9

PAGE-
10

PAGE-
11

Symbol Description Watts Temp color Quantity

COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911 150 W 4000K 58

AREA 17,500L 4000K BLACK 150K 4000K 2

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH) N/A N/A 57

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 14' 6" (10' MH) N/A N/A 1

BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 33’ (24’ MH) N/A N/A 2

Product summary

A

B

C

CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
LOC 57 – 60: FPL TO INSTALL COOPER MESA 150W 4000K 14,911L ON 
BLACK TAPERED CONCRETE 21' (15' 6" MH).  FPL SL HH TO BE 
INSTALLED AT BASE OF NEW SL POLE UNLESS WITHIN 10FT OF EXISTING 
PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER 

- FPL TO RUN 1/0 TPX ALT LEG TO ALL LOCATIONS 

- EASEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED

-CUSTOMER TO INSTALL ALL 2" CONDUIT AND SECONDARY 
HANDHOLES

-‘CHECK VOLTAGE – CONVERT 480V TO 120V OR 240V’ ON 480V 
CIRCUITS, CHANGE THE RELAY PRIOR TO INSTALLING THE 
LIGHTS.  VERIFY THE SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF LIGHTS ON THAT RELAY. 
CONTACT THE FPL PL TO ASSIST WITH THIS PROCESS.

-CUSTOMER TO CONTACT FPL PL AND COORDINATE STAKING OF ALL 
LOCATIONS PRIOR LED INSTALLATIONS. CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE 
FOR ANY RESTORATION REQUIRED.  

FPL LED REPRESENTATIVE: DIEGO FEBRES

PAGE-
11

606059

585857

P
A

G
E 

1
0

24" HH 24" HH

24" HH
24" HH

6
0

'

6
0

'

1
2

0
'

1
2

0
'

PAGE 9

Page 112



 

 

AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

 
 

 
 

 

MASTER TRUST INDENTURE 

ENGINEER’S REPORT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024 

 
Prepared for: 

Board of Supervisors 

Avenir Community Development District 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 

 
 

BALLBÉ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

3564 N. Ocean Boulevard 

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 

(954) 491-7811 
 

Project Number: 

201622 

 

August 2024 
 

 

 

 

Page 113



ballbé & associates, inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

PART I INTRODUCTION ……………………..………..……………….…..……………… 1 

PART II GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION …………….….….……….……………. 2 

PART III PUBLIC PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS UPDATE …………..…………..……..….. 10 

PART IV MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND OPERATION BUDGET ………………………………… 17 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 114



 
 

ballbé & associates, inc. 

1 

 

 

 

PART I: INTRODUCTION 

 

Pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture between the Avenir Community 

Development District (the “District”) and Regions Bank (the “Trustee”) relating to 

the Avenir Community Development District Special Assessment Bonds (the 

“Bonds”), this Engineer’s Report for Fiscal Year 2024 (the “Report”) was prepared 

by Ballbé & Associates, Inc., (the “District Engineer”) on behalf of the Avenir 

Community Development District Board of Supervisors (the “Board”), the 

governing body of the District, for the purposes of inspecting any portions of the 

Avenir Assessment Area One, Avenir Assessment Area Two and Avenir 

Assessment Area Three (the “Project”) lands owned by the District and provide 

the following information: 

 

(i) Report its findings as to whether such portions of the Project owned by 

the District have been maintained in good repair, working order and 

condition. 

(ii) Provide its recommendations as to the proper maintenance, repair and 

operation of the Project during the ensuing Fiscal Year. 

(iii) Provide an estimate of the amount of money necessary for such 

purpose. 

 

The District is located in the City of Palm Beach Gardens (the “City”), Palm Beach 

County, Florida and was established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for 

the development of the public infrastructure and required public improvements 

to service the Avenir Planned Community Development (the “Development”) 

and to provide for the acquisition, financing, long term administration and 

management of such public infrastructure improvements.  Avenir Development, 

LLC (the “Developer”) is managing the construction of the improvements in the 

Project on behalf of the District.  

 

Information provided in this Report was obtained by the District Engineer who has 

considered and in certain instances relied upon opinions, information and 

documentation prepared or supplied by others, which may have included 

public officials, public entities, Special District Services, Inc. (the “District 

Manager”) and other professionals and contractors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

2 

 

 

PART II: GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

A. Location 

 

The District is located in the City of Palm Beach Gardens (the “City”), more 

particularly described as being situated North of Northlake Boulevard, 

South of Beeline Highway, East of Grapeview Boulevard and West of 

Stonewall Drive.  The land lies the following sections: 

 

Township, Range Section Number 

Township 42 South 

Range 41 East  
4,8,9,10,14,15,16,17 

Township 41 South 

Range 41 East 
28,23 

Total District Area = 2,427.50 Acres 

 

For a depiction of the District’s boundary please refer to Exhibit 1.   

 

B. General Information 

 

The District’s property consists of approximately 2,427.50 gross acres which 

will be subdivided into several parcels for the uses specified above, along 

with the required roadways, lakes and landscape buffers depicted in the 

master plan.  A large portion of the site is clear of vegetation and is 

currently being used for farming purposes.  The balance of the site consists 

of environmentally sensitive lands and upland areas which have not been 

cleared. 

 

C. Assessment Area One General Information 

 

 The District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2018-1 & 2018-2 (Assessment 

Area One Project), the District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2018-3 

(Clubhouse Project) and the District Special Assessment Bonds, Series 

2019-1 (Parcels A6-A9 Project) are herein collectively referred to as the 

“Bonds”.  Proceeds from the Bonds are being used to fund the 

construction of the Project and the Clubhouse. 

 

Please refer to Exhibit 2 attached showing the limits of Assessment Area 

One.  The Development is being constructed in phases.  Following please 

find a brief description of the improvements under construction in Fiscal 

Year 2024 along with the status and ownership/maintenance responsibility: 

Page 116



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 

# 
Improvement Description Status 

Ownership 

Maintenance 

1 
Master water management system – 

lakes 
Complete District 

2 
Master water management system – 

lake interconnects  
Complete District 

3 

Spine Road Phase One – water 

distribution and sewage collection 

system 

Complete 
Seacoast Utility 

Authority 

4 
Spine Road Phase One – lift stations and 

transmission system 
Complete 

Seacoast Utility 

Authority 

5 

Spine Road Phase One – drainage 

system, paving, sidewalks and related 

work 

Complete District 

6 
Spine Road Phase One – landscape 

and irrigation 
Complete District 

7 
Spine Road Phase One – streetlights 

and dry utilities 
Complete 

Florida Power & 

Light 

8 Spine Road Phase One – entry features Complete District 

9 

Mecca Water Main Extension Canal 

Aerial Crossing 

 

Mecca Water Main Extension 

Complete 

Palm Beach 

County Water 

Utilities 

Department 

 

Seacoast Utility 

Authority 

10 Clubhouse Complete District 

11 
Avenir Phase One Mitigation 

Environmental Restoration 
Complete District 

 

 

  

Page 117



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

4 

 

 

 

D. Parcel A-4 Sub-Assessment Area General Information 

 

Below please find the planned use for the Project within the corresponding 

Parcel A-4 Sub-Assessment Area within Assessment Area One: 

 

 

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units 

A-4 80’x140’ residential lot 107 

Total Number of Units = 107 

 

 The infrastructure improvements required for the Parcel A-4 

Sub-Assessment Area (refer to Exhibit 3) consist of public improvements, 

community facilities and basic infrastructure needed to serve that sub 

assessment area.  Said improvements are being funded by the District by 

the issuance of its Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2019B Bonds (the “Tax 

Exempt Bonds”) and by the issuance of its Taxable Special Assessment 

Bonds, Series 2019B Bonds (the “Taxable Bonds”), collectively referred as 

the “Series 2019-B Bonds.”   

 

Following please find a brief description of the improvements under 

construction in Fiscal Year 2024 along with the status and 

ownership/maintenance responsibility: 

 

Item 

# 
Improvement Description Status 

Ownership 

Maintenance 

1 Water management system Complete District 

2 
Water Distribution and Sewage 

Collection System 
Complete 

Seacoast Utility 

Authority 

3 Landscape & Irrigation Common Areas Complete District/HOA 

4 
Walls, Hardscape & Sidewalks Common 

Areas 
Complete 

District/HOA 

 

 

 

 

Page 118



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

5 

E. 2021 Assessment Area Two - General Information 

 

Below please find the parcels within the Assessment Area Two – 2021A Project 

Area and the planned uses that will benefit from the Assessment Area Two – 

2021A Project: 

 

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units 

A-10 & 

A-11 

70’ wide residential 172 

80’ wide residential 101 

A-12 (PN) 90’ wide residential 139 

   

A-13 (PN) 
125’ wide residential 12 

175’ wide residential 15 

A-14 (PN) 
125’ wide residential 43 

175’ wide residential 9 

A-15 (GL) 
50’ wide residential 358 

62’ wide residential 204 

A-18 80’ wide residential 110 

A-20  
55’ wide residential 78 

65’ wide residential 68 

A-21 80’ wide residential 128 

Golf Course Recreational 217.57 acres 

Charter 

School 
Educational 7.263 acres 

TOTALS = 
1,437 units 

889.96 acres 

 

The District issued Special Assessment Bonds for the Assessment Area Two – 

2021A Project in one or more series (herein, the “2021A Bonds”) to finance 

and refinance a portion of the Project.  Proceeds from the Bonds are 

being used to fund the construction of the Project. 

 

Page 119



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

6 

 Please refer to Exhibit 4 attached showing the limits of Assessment Area 

Two.  The Development is being constructed in phases.  Following please 

find a brief description of the improvements under construction in Fiscal 

Year 2024 along with the status and ownership/maintenance responsibility: 

 

Item 

# 
Improvement Description Status 

Ownership 

Maintenance 

1 

Surface water management and 

drainage system, including related land 

acquisition 

In Progress District 

2 
Master drainage system and drainage 

pump station 
Complete District 

3 
Wastewater collection/transmission 

system 
In Progress 

Seacoast 

Utility 

Authority 

4 Water distribution system In Progress 

Seacoast 

Utility 

Authority 

5 
Roadways including related land 

acquisition 

Land 

acquisition 

complete 

Roadway in 

progress 

District 

6 
Open space and recreation areas, 

including land acquisition 
In Progress District 

7 
Landscaping, irrigation, entrance 

features, hardscapes 
In Progress District 

8 Conservation area mitigation In Progress District 

 

 

The District issued the 2021B Bonds for the Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project in 

one or more series to finance land acquisition.  The 2021B Bonds were secured 

by all the assemble lands within Assessment Area Two but excluding Parcels A-12, 

A-13 and A-14, and excluding the Golf Course Parcel and the Charter School 

Parcel (herein the “Assessment Area Two – 2021B Project Area”). 

 

 

F. Special Assessment Bonds (Panther National Residential Project) – General 

Information 

 

In addition to the above listed improvements, the District issued bonds to 

fund the estimated costs for the public infrastructure for Panther National 

Page 120



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

7 

Assessment Area described below: 

 

 

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units 

A-12 (PN) 90’ wide residential 139 

A-13 (PN) 
125’ wide residential 12 

175’ wide residential 15 

A-14 (PN) 
125’ wide residential 43 

175’ wide residential 9 

TOTALS = 
218 units 

139.09 acres 

 

 

Following please find a brief description of the improvements under 

construction in Fiscal Year 2024 along with the status and 

ownership/maintenance responsibility: 

 

Item 

# 
Improvement Description Status 

Ownership 

Maintenance 

1 
Surface water management and 

drainage system 
Complete District 

2 
Wastewater collection/transmission 

system 
In Progress 

Seacoast 

Utility 

Authority 

3 Water distribution system In Progress 

Seacoast 

Utility 

Authority 

4 

Roadways (surface water 

management and drainage related 

items only) 

In Progress District 

 

  

Page 121



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

8 

G. Assessment Area Three - General Information 

 

Below please find the parcels within the Assessment Area Two ThreePhase Three – 

2022A Project Area and the planned uses that benefit from the Assessment Area 

Two ThreePhase Three – 2023A Project: 

 

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units 

A-16 
50’ wide residential 283 

60’ wide residential 208 

A-17 65’ wide residential 125 

A-19 65’ wide residential 135 

Parcel “D” 
Professional 

Office/Medical 
97.44 acres 

Parcel “H” Agriculture 11.43 acres 

Parcel “J-East” Professional Office 7.52 acres 

Parcel “J-West” Professional Office 14.23 acres 

TOTALS = 
751 units 

130.62 acres 

 

 

The District issued Special Assessment Bonds for the Assessment Area Three – 2023 

Project in one or more series (herein, the “2023 Bonds”) to finance and refinance 

a portion of the Project.  Proceeds from the Bonds are being used to fund the 

construction of the Project. 

 

 Please refer to Exhibit 5 attached showing the limits of Assessment Area 

Three.  The Development is being constructed in phases.  Following 

please find a brief description of the improvements under construction in 

Fiscal Year 2024 along with the status and ownership/maintenance 

responsibility: 

 

Item 

# 
Improvement Description Status 

Ownership 

Maintenance 

1 

Surface water management and 

drainage system, including related land 

acquisition 

In Progress District 

2 Wastewater collection/transmission In Progress Seacoast 

Page 122



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

9 

system Utility 

Authority 

3 Water distribution system In Progress 

Seacoast 

Utility 

Authority 

4 
Roadways including related land 

acquisition 

Land 

acquisition 

complete 

Roadway in 

progress 

District 

5 
Open space and recreation areas, 

including land acquisition 
In Progress District 

6 
Landscaping, Irrigation, Entrance 

Features, Hardscapes 
In Progress District 

7 Wetlands Mitigation and Conservation In Progress District 

 

 

 

  

Page 123



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

10 

 

PART III: PUBLIC PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS UPDATE 

 

Following is a summary of the status of the Project pursuant to the inspections 

performed by the District Engineer on behalf of the District: 

 

1. Master Water Management System – Lakes 

 

The surface water management system for Assessment Area One, Two and 

Three consists of a series of lakes interconnected with pipes and a 

drainage pump station that will discharge the generated runoff to the 

preservation and restoration areas.  Surface water runoff is conveyed to a 

primary collector ditch located along the east boundary of the site and 

flows north along the east boundary to the north property line then to the 

west along the north property line until it reaches the existing control 

structure adjacent to the C-18 Canal.   

 

The District has purchased most of the master lake tracts within the three 

Assessment Areas.   

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area One: 

All of the master lakes, the lakes owned by the District within the parcels 

within Assessment Area One have been constructed in accordance to the 

permitted plans with the exception of the lake in the Palm Beach Gardens 

Economic Development Parcel.  All completed lake banks are properly 

graded (verified by lake slope as-builts), have been sodded and are being 

maintained by the District.   

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Two: 

Approximately 80% of the lakes within Assessment Area Two have been 

completed.  All completed lake banks are properly graded (verified by 

lake slope as-builts), have been sodded and are being maintained by the 

District.  

  

The drainage pump station has been constructed and is being operated 

and maintained by the District.  

 

The District’s contractor is in the process of installing lake interconnects and 

has disturbed the lake banks in a couple areas; the lake bank in these 

areas will be restored when the lake interconnects are completed. 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three: 

Approximately 40% of the lakes within Assessment Area Three have been 

completed.  All completed lake banks are properly graded (verified by 

Page 124



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

11 

lake slope as-builts), have been sodded and are being maintained by the 

District.  

 

The District’s contractor is in the process of finalizing the installation of the 

lake interconnects and has disturbed the lake banks in a couple areas; the 

lake bank in these areas will be restored when the lake interconnects are 

completed. 

 

 

2. Master Water Management System – Lake Interconnects 

  

The master lakes and the lakes owned by the District within the parcels are 

interconnected with drainage pipes and endwalls.   

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area One: 

All of the lake interconnects within Assessment Area One have been 

constructed in accordance to the permitted plans and certified to the 

South Florida Water Management District.  The lake interconnects are 

being maintained by the District. 

 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Two: 

Approximately 80% of the lake interconnects within Assessment Area Two 

have been installed and the installation of the remaining lake 

interconnects is in progress and been inspected by our office.  None of 

the completed work has been certified to the permitting agencies. 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three: 

Approximately 40% of the lake interconnects within Assessment Area Two 

have been installed and the installation of the remaining lake 

interconnects is in progress and been inspected by our office.  None of 

the completed work has been certified to the permitting agencies. 

 

 

3. Spine Roads Construction – Water Distribution and Sewage Collection 

System 

 

The Project is located within the Seacoast Utility Authority (“SUA”) water 

and sewer service area.  The proposed improvements for the sewage 

collection system consists of a network of gravity mains and manholes 

within the spine roads which collect the sewage flow from the parcels and 

discharge the flow into a series of lift stations throughout Avenir.  The flow 

from the lift stations is pumped to a network of force mains connected to 

the County’s force main system. The improvements for the water 

distribution system consists of the installation of a water main trunk lines 

Page 125



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

12 

within the spine roads which connect to the County’s water main system. 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area One: 

• The installation of the water distribution system is complete and has 

been certified by the Seacoast Utility Authority (“SUA”) and the Palm 

Beach County Florida Department of Health-Palm Beach County.  

The improvements are currently in good working condition and have 

been conveyed to SUA for ownership and maintenance.  

• The installation of the sewage collection system is complete, and the 

contractor is in the process of finalizing the Spine Road Phase 3 final 

certification which is the last portion of the spine road that needs to 

be conveyed to SUA.  The completed portion of the system has 

been constructed in accordance with the approved plans, is 

currently in good working condition and has been conveyed to SUA 

for ownership and maintenance.  

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Two: 

• The construction of water distribution and sewage collection systems 

for the Spine Road Phase 4 (Avenir Drive from Coconut Boulevard to 

Panther National Boulevard) is complete and the final certification 

and conveyance to Seacoast Utility Authority is in progress. 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three: 

• The construction of water distribution and sewage collection systems 

for the Spine Road Phase 5 (Panther National Boulevard from 

Northlake Boulevard to Avenir Drive) is complete and the final 

certification and conveyance to Seacoast Utility Authority is in 

progress. 

• The construction of water distribution system for the Spine Road 

Phase 6 (Panther National Boulevard from Northlake Boulevard to 

Avenir Drive) is complete and the final certification and conveyance 

to Seacoast Utility Authority is in progress. 

 

 

4. Lift Stations and Transmission System 

 

Sewage lift stations are being constructed to handle the sewage flow 

generated the parcels and a force main has been constructed to carry 

the flow to the existing force main owned and operated by Palm Beach 

County. 

 

 Inspection Report Assessment Area One: 

• The installation of the lift stations and force mains for Spine Roads 1 & 

2 are complete and the improvements have been certified by the 

Palm Beach County Florida Department of Health-Palm Beach 

Page 126



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

13 

County.  The improvements are currently in good working condition 

and have been conveyed to SUA for ownership and maintenance.  

• The installation of the lift station and force main in Spine Road 3 is 

complete and our office has been conducting periodic inspections.  

Once the work is complete and the final certification and 

conveyance to Seacoast Utility Authority is in progress. 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Two: 

• The construction of force main improvements within Spine Road 

Phase 4 (Avenir Drive from Coconut Boulevard to Panther National 

Boulevard) is complete and the final certification and conveyance 

to Seacoast Utility Authority is in progress. 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three: 

• The construction of two lift stations and force main as part of the 

Spine Road Phase 5 project (Panther National Boulevard from 

Northlake Boulevard to Avenir Drive) is in progress and the final 

certification and conveyance process will commence and soon as 

the work is completed. 

• There are no lift stations proposed for the Spine Road Phase 6 

project. 

 

5. Spine Roads – Drainage System, Paving, Sidewalks and Related Work 

 

The roadway components include but are not limited to drainage culverts, 

catch basins, road subgrade, rock base, asphalt, curbing, pavement 

markings, signage, sidewalks and asphalt paths. 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area One: 

• Spine Roads 1 (Avenir Drive from Northlake Boulevard to Coconut 

Boulevard) has been constructed and certified to the permitting 

agencies. The road is being maintained by the District and is in good 

working condition. 

• Spine Road 2 (Coconut Boulevard from Avenir Drive north to the 

conservation area) has been constructed and certified to the 

permitting agencies. The road is being maintained by the District 

and is in good working condition. 

• Spine Road 3 (Coconut Boulevard from Avenir Drive to Northlake 

Boulevard) has been constructed and the final certification process 

is in progress.  The road is temporarily closed until the Norhtlake 

Boulevard widening project is complete. 

 

Page 127



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

14 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Two: 

• The construction of Spine Road Phase 4 (Avenir Drive from Coconut 

Boulevard to Panther National Boulevard) has been completed and 

is in the process of been certified to SUA and the Palm Beach 

County Florida Department of Health-Palm Beach County.   

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three: 

• The construction of Spine Road Phase 5 (Panther National Boulevard 

from Northlake Boulevard to Avenir Drive) is in progress 

(approximately 90% complete).  Our office is conducting periodic 

inspections and will process the final certification when the project is 

completed, and the contractor provides the necessary documents. 

• The construction of Spine Road Phase 6 (Avenir Drive from Panther 

National Boulevard to Mecca) is in progress (approximately 90% 

complete).  Our office is conducting periodic inspections and will 

process the final certification when the project is completed, and 

the contractor provides the necessary documents. 

 

6. Spine Roads – Landscape and Irrigation 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area One: 

• Installation of landscape and irrigation for Spine Road 1 (Avenir Drive 

from Northlake Boulevard to Coconut Boulevard) and Spine Road 2 

(Coconut Boulevard from Avenir Drive north to the conservation 

area) has been completed and certified to the permitting agencies. 

The landscape and irrigation are being maintained by the District 

and is in good condition. 

• Installation of landscape and irrigation for Spine Road 3 (Coconut 

Boulevard from Avenir Drive to Northlake Boulevard) is 

approximately 90% complete and UDS (Landscape Architecture 

company hired by the District to inspect project) has been 

conducting periodic inspections.  Once the work is completed UDS 

will conduct the final inspections and will certify the project to the 

permitting agencies. 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Two: 

• Installation of landscape and irrigation for Spine Road 4 (Avenir Drive 

from Coconut Boulevard to Panther National Boulevard) has been 

completed and certified to the permitting agencies. The landscape 

and irrigation are being maintained by the District and is in good 

condition. 

 

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three: 

• Installation of landscape and irrigation for Spine Road Phase 5 

(Panther National Boulevard from Northlake Boulevard to Avenir 

Page 128



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

15 

Drive) and Spine Road Phase 6 (Avenir Drive from Panther National 

Boulevard to Mecca) is approximately 90% complete and UDS 

(Landscape Architecture company hired by the District to inspect 

project) has been conducting periodic inspections.  Once the work 

is completed UDS will conduct the final inspections and will certify 

the project to the permitting agencies. 

 

7. Spine Roads – Entry Features 

 

Avenir Drive (Assessment Area One): 

The entry feature to the Project located at the Avenir Drive and Northlake 

Boulevard intersection includes walls, signs, berms, landscaping, irrigation, 

lighting, fountains, and related features.  This entry feature has been 

constructed, certified to the permitting agencies, is operational and in  

good working condition.  The District is maintaining the entry feature.   

 

Coconut Boulevard (Assessment Area Two): 

The entry feature to the Project located at the Coconut Boulevard Drive 

and Northlake Boulevard intersection includes walls, signs, berms, 

landscaping, irrigation, lighting, fountains, and related features.  This entry 

is under construction.  

 

Panther National Boulevard (Assessment Area Three): 

The entry feature to the Project located at the Panther National Boulevard 

and Northlake Boulevard intersection includes walls, signs, berms, 

landscaping, irrigation, lighting, fountains, and related features.  This entry 

is under design and permitting.  

 

8. Mecca Water Main and Force Main Extensions 

 

Both projects have been completed, certified and conveyed to Seacoast 

Utility Authority.  The District is not maintaining these projects. 

 

9. Clubhouse 

 

East Clubhouse (Assessment Area One) 

The District has constructed the Clubhouse and is currently being operated 

by the District. 

 

West Clubhouse 

The west clubhouse will be constructed by Avenir Development, LLC and is 

not included in any of the assessment areas. 

 

10. Avenir Phase One Mitigation Environmental Restoration 

 

Page 129



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

16 

 The Phase One Mitigation Area is comprised of approximately 300 acres of 

the designated Avenir Conservation Area which occurs north of the 

development area, east of the “north-south road”, and south of the Sweet 

Bay Natural Area.  The District has completed the initial habitat restoration 

requirements for the Phase 1 and started working on the habitat restoration 

for Phase 2. 

 

 The project consists of the following tasks: 

 

• Conduct the habitat restoration activities 

• Upland Pasture Area Restoration 

• Wetland Invasive Species Treatment 

• Mechanical Clearing 

• Native Upland Restoration 

• Native Vegetation Thinning 

• Hydrologic Restoration 

 

 

Inspection Report for Phase Two: 

 The field work described above is approximately 40% complete. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 130



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

17 

 

 

PART IV: MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND OPERATION BUDGET / INSURANCE 

 

A. Maintenance, Repair and Operation Budget 

 

We have reviewed the District’s Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 

(October 1, 2024 – September 30, 2025), see attached Exhibit 6, as 

adopted by the Board and found it to be sufficient for the maintenance of 

the improvements constructed to date and to be constructed and 

maintained within the budget period. 

 

B. Insurance 

 

The District currently carries the following insurance coverages: 

 

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS 

Commercial General Liability 

Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

Damage to rented 

premises (ea 

occurrence) 
$100,000 

Med exp (any one 

person) 
$5,000 

Personal & adv injury $1,000,000 

General aggregate $2,000,000 

Products - comp/op 

AGG 
$2,000,000 

Professional Liability  $1,000,000 

 

We have reviewed the above listed coverage and limits and believe they 

are adequate.  Also, we have reviewed the premium cost and believe 

that is reasonable.  The budget currently includes the cost of the 

insurance annual premium for the coverage listed above.  

Page 131



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

18 

 

 

 

 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Master Trust 

Indenture Engineer’s Report Fiscal Year 2024. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

BALLBÉ & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

    August 22, 2024 

Carlos J. Ballbé 

For the Firm 

Registered Engineer No. 41811 

State of Florida 

 

 

 

Page 132



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBITS 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Prepared by: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 133



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 1 Location Map / CDD Boundary 

 

 

  

Page 134



2737 Northeast 30th Place
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306

Phone: (954) 491-7811
Authorization No. EB-26343

Engineer of Record:

Reg. Eng. No. 41811

State of Florida

PROPERTY BOUNDARY LIMITS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT BOUNDARY

9/13/2016

Page 135

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUNGRYLAND SLOUGH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COCONUT BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
140th AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPEVIEW BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PBG GOLF COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASSY WATER PRESERVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWEET BAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.F.W.M.D. PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEELINE HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHLAKE BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000

AutoCAD SHX Text
4000

AutoCAD SHX Text
Carlos J. Ballbe'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENIR HOLDINGS, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENIR C.D.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXHIBIT 1 LOCATION MAP



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 2 Assessment Area One Plan 

 

 

  

Page 136



PROPERTY
LINE (TYP.)

PROPERTY
LINE (TYP.)

PROPERTY
LINE (TYP.)

TOWN CENTER
COMMERCIAL

NORTHLAKE BLVD.

C
O

C
O

N
U
T

 B
LV

D
.

PALM BEACH
GARDENS
ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT

CLUBHOUSE

CONSERVATION AREA

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT
AREA NUMBER ONE (TYP.)LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT

AREA NUMBER ONE (TYP.)

TOWN CENTER
RESIDENTIAL

PARCEL A-1

PARCEL A-4

PARCEL A-2

PARCEL A-3

PARCEL A-5

PARCEL A-6PARCEL A-8

PARCEL A-7

PARCEL A-9

PROPERTY
LINE (TYP.)

PROPERTY
LINE (TYP.)

PROPERTY
LINE (TYP.)

NORTHLAKE BLVD.

PALM BEACH GARDENS
CIVIC/RECREATION

CONSERVATION AREA

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT
AREA NUMBER ONE (TYP.)LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT

AREA NUMBER ONE (TYP.)

SPINE ROAD PHASE ONE

SPINE ROAD PHASE ONE

MECCA WATER MAIN EXTENSION

A
V
EN

IR
D

R
.

END SPINE ROAD
PHASE ONE

1 OF 1

201622

Registered Engineer Number:

State of Florida

REVISIONBYDATENO.REVISIONBYDATENO.

Date:

Project Number:

Sheet Number:AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ASSESSMENT AREA ONE PLAN2737 Northeast 30th Place
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306

Phone: (954) 491-7811
Authorization No. EB-26343

Checked by:

Drawn by:

Designed by: Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer of Record:

Page 137

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 500'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
41811

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARLOS J. BALLBE'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.J.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.J.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/2019



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 3 Parcel A-4 Sub-Assessment Area 

 

 

  

Page 138



ASSESSMENT
AREA

CLUBHOUSE

PARCEL A-1

PARCEL A-4A
V
EN

IR
 D

R
IV

E

NORTHLAKE BOULEVARD

1 OF 1

201622

Registered Engineer Number:

State of Florida

REVISIONBYDATENO.REVISIONBYDATENO.

Date:

Project Number:

Sheet Number:AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

AVENIR PARCEL A-4 ASSESSMENT AREA2737 Northeast 30th Place
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306

Phone: (954) 491-7811
Authorization No. EB-26343

Checked by:

Drawn by:

Designed by: Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer of Record:

AVENIR PARCEL A-4 ASSESSMENT AREA

Page 139

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
41811

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARLOS J. BALLBE'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/20/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.J.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.A.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/2019



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 4 Assessment Area Two 

 

 

  

Page 140



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

18.0 C.E.

18.0 C.E.

24.0 BERM

20.0 T.O.B.

20.0 T.O.B.

20.0 T.O.B.

24.0 BERM

18.0 C.E.

24.0 BERM

22

21

20

19

22

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

17

23.0

23.0

24.0 BERM

24.0 BERM

8

NO POST

8

NO POST

8

NO POST

50
'-
0"

 X
 8

4'
-0

" 
HI
GH

 S
CH

OO
L 

RE
GU

LA
TI
ON

 S
IZ
E 

CO
UR

T

18.0 C.E.

18.0 C.E.

24.0 BERM

20.0 T.O.B.

20.0 T.O.B.

20.0 T.O.B.

24.0 BERM

18.0 C.E.

24.0 BERM

22

21

20

19

22

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

17

23.0

23.0

24.0 BERM

24.0 BERM

STO
P

ELECTRICAL

TRUCK WELL

PRO ENTRANCE

STOP

STOP

ONLY
LO

ADIN
G

LOADING ZONELOADING ZONELOADING ZONE

ST
O

P

LOADING ZONE LOADING ZONE

M
AN

EU
VER

ABILITY
AR

EA 12' x 35'

M
AN

EU
VER

ABILITY
AR

EA 12' x 35'

T

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT AREA
TWO - 2021A PROJECT (TYP.)

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT AREA
TWO - 2021A PROJECT (TYP.)

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT AREA
TWO - 2021A PROJECT (TYP.)

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT AREA
TWO - 2021A PROJECT (TYP.)

Registered Engineer Number:
State of Florida

Engineer of Record:

REVISIONBYDATENO.REVISIONBYDATE
Checked by:

Drawn by:

Designed by: Date:

Date:

Date:
NO.

Date:

Project Number:

Sheet Number:

2737 Northeast 30th Place
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306

Phone: (954) 491-7811
Authorization No. CA26426 1 OF 1

201622

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ASSESSMENT AREA TWO-2021A PROJECT AREA PLAN

EXHIBIT 3

ASSESSMENT AREA TWO
2021A PROJECT

Page 141



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 5 Assessment Area Three Plan 

 

 

  

Page 142



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

18.0 C.E.

18.0 C.E.

24.0 BERM

20.0 T.O.B.

20.0 T.O.B.

20.0 T.O.B.

24.0 BERM

18.0 C.E.

24.0 BERM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

23.0

23.0

24.0 BERM

24.0 BERM

18.0 C.E.

18.0 C.E.

24.0 BERM

20.0 T.O.B.

20.0 T.O.B.

20.0 T.O.B.

24.0 BERM

18.0 C.E.

24.0 BERM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

6.0 BTM

23.0

23.0

24.0 BERM

24.0 BERM

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT AREA
THREE - 2023  PROJECT (TYP.)

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT AREA
THREE - 2023 PROJECT (TYP.)

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT AREA
THREE - 2023 PROJECT (TYP.)

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT AREA
THREE - 2023 PROJECT (TYP.)

LIMITS OF ASSESSMENT AREA
THREE - 2023 PROJECT (TYP.)

Registered Engineer Number:
State of Florida

Engineer of Record:

REVISIONBYDATENO.REVISIONBYDATE
Checked by:

Drawn by:

Designed by: Date:

Date:

Date:
NO.

Date:

Project Number:

Sheet Number:

2737 Northeast 30th Place
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306

Phone: (954) 491-7811
Authorization No. CA26426 1 OF 1

201622

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ASSESSMENT AREA THREE 2023 PROJECT AREA PLAN

ASSESSMENT AREA THREE
2023 PROJECT

Page 143

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-16

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "H"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL"J"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL"J"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL"D"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTHER NATIONAL GOLF COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PN-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
PN-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
PN-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
City Parcel

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-16

AutoCAD SHX Text
Townhomes

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
City Annex

AutoCAD SHX Text
Town Center

AutoCAD SHX Text
Charter School

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT PART OF AVENIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 500'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.J.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
41811

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARLOS J. BALLBE'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/12/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHLAKE BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COCONUT  BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENIR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTHER NATIONAL BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENIR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENIR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHLAKE BLVD.



 

 
ballbé & associates, inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 6 Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

 

 

 

 

Page 144



From: Burton Diamond
To: Jason Pierman
Subject: Re: Basketball Court / Avenir
Date: Thursday, July 11, 2024 12:15:25 PM

Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Hawkins Construction, Inc.
1430 L and R Industrial Blvd.
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689
Phone: (727) 938-9719

Project: 2-8107 - Avenir Town Center - Site, Landscape, Irrigation
12253 Northlake Blvd

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33412

Prime Contract Potential Change Order #007:  Exhibit A-11-Irrigation Pump
Station

PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 007 / 0 CREATED BY: Karl Smith  (Hawkins Construction Inc)
REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:   CREATED DATE: 4/23 /2024  

REFERENCE:  

FIELD CHANGE: No SCHEDULE IMPACT: 
LOCATION: TOTAL AMOUNT: $34,148.09

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Exhibit A-11-Irrigation Pump Station

CHANGE REASON: Added Scope

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
CE #016 - Exhibit A-11-Irrigation Pump Station
Exhibit A-11-Irrigation Pump Station
 
Add Landscaping, Irrigation and Fencing at Irrigation Pump Station Per Revised Plans
 
Tree Replacement due to disease concern per UDS

ATTACHMENTS:
JR Hawkins-Avenir CO #1 Proposal 32459 (002).pdf RE AVENIR TOWN CENTER Triple Sylvestris Dates Green Go's.pdf avenir pumpstation new
landscaping.pdf LP-17: LANDSCAPE PLAN Rev.2.pdf LP-18: LANDSCAPE PLAN-PLANTING DETAILS Rev.1.pdf

# Cost Code Description Type Amount

1 32-9000 - Landscape Work Irrigation Pump Station Subcontract $ 27,425.00

2 32-9000 - Landscape Work Fencing Subcontract $ 3,984.00

Subtotal: $31,409.00

Liability Insurance: 0.50% Applies to all line item types. $ 157.05

Builders Risk Insurance: 0.35% Applies to all line item types. $ 110.48

P&P Bond: 0.75% Applies to all line item types. $ 237.57

Fee: 7.00% Applies to all line item types. $ 2,233.99

  Grand Total: $34,148.09

Architect:  Owner/Developer:  Hawkins Construction Inc
    1430 L & R Industrial Blvd
    Tarpon Springs Florida 34689
     
     
     

SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE

Hawkins Construction, Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/1/ 2024  01 :00 PM

PCO #007

Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Invoice
Date

4/15/2024

Invoice #

164

Bill To

Hawkins Costruction
Seth Rains
727 938 9719
Palm Beach USA
AVENIR-TOWN CENTER

Green Go's Landscaping, LLC

11725 SW 91 Terrace
FL 33157

P.O. No. Terms Project

Total

DescriptionQuantity Rate Amount

Landscape-Irrigation installation services 27,425.00 27,425.00

Additonal Cost / Deductions / Tree Material-Landscape / Irrigation / ***PROJECT -
AVENIR TOWN CENTER PHASE 1

26 - Phoenix Sylverstris Date Palms @ 20 ft **CT @ $4,500 per palm installed  /
Orignal plans-Contract /  - - Now being Subsituted - Requested by UDS - Tyler
NEW- REVISED  - 26 - Phoenix MEDJOOL Date Palms  @ 20 ft  **CT  @ $4,500 per
palm installed / New Palms in lieu of original Palms per plans  / Approved by UDS -
Tyler
** No Cost Change                                                                                                            
$0.00

4 - Phoenix Sylvestris Date Palms **TRIPLE TRUNK @ $2,500 per palm installed  /
Original plans-Contract / - - Now being Subsituted - Request by UDS - Tyler
NEW - REVISED - 4 - Alexander Palms **TRIPLE TRUNK @ 12 ft **CW @ $1,500
per palm installed / New Palms in Lieu of Original Palms per plans / Approved by UDS
- Tyler
**Deduction Cost of  -$4,000                                                                                            
-$4,000.00

Additioanl REVISED Landscape- Irrigation covering Irrigation Pump Station- Natural
Gas Station perimeter / - - Requested by UDS - Tyler
7- silver buttonwood @ 12 ft  o/a 3" caliper @ $500.00 per tree installed                        
$3,500.00
18 - Sabal Palms @ 12-16 ft **CT Slicked  @ $400 per palm  Installed                          
$7,200.00
21 - Saw Palmetto 7 gl full @ $75 per palm installed                                                       
$1,575.00
Irrigation  / 100% full coverage Laterals-Spray heads- Funny pipe- Main PVC               
$6,500.00
40 - Cubic Yards Top Soil Mix 50/50 @ 6" depth @ $40 Per cubic yard                         
$1,600.00

Page 1
Page 178



Invoice
Date

4/15/2024

Invoice #

164

Bill To

Hawkins Costruction
Seth Rains
727 938 9719
Palm Beach USA
AVENIR-TOWN CENTER

Green Go's Landscaping, LLC

11725 SW 91 Terrace
FL 33157

P.O. No. Terms Project

Total

DescriptionQuantity Rate Amount

20 - Cubic yards Eucalytus mulch @ 3" depth @ $40 per cubic yard                               
$800.00
7,500 square ft Bahia Sod Installed @ .50 cents per square ft installed                            
$3,750.00
equipment - labor - temp watering                                                                                     
$2,750.00

**EXCLUDED / Fencing - excavating islands- back fill- lawn maintenace / structural

Green Go's Landscaping, LLC
11725 SW 91 Terrace Miami Florida 33186
305 909 5743
jhitch74@hotmail.com

Page 2

$27,425.00

Page 179



A

D D

DD

E

E

E

E

NORTHLAKE BOULEVARD

T

SHEET KEY

PLANT LEGEND

Page 180



MAY 24, 2023 (Rev D-23)
Typical Shrub, Small Tree or Palm Tree with Root Barrier

Typical Canopy Tree, Large or Exotic Palm Tree with Root Barrier
MAY 24, 2023 (Rev D-23)

Page 181



Hawkins Construction, Inc.
1430 L and R Industrial Blvd.
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689
Phone: (727) 938-9719

Project: 2-8107 - Avenir Town Center - Site, Landscape, Irrigation
12253 Northlake Blvd

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33412

Prime Contract Potential Change Order #008:  Fountain Lighting Changes
PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 008 / 0 CREATED BY: Karl Smith  (Hawkins Construction Inc)
REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:   CREATED DATE: 7/1 /2024  

REFERENCE:  

FIELD CHANGE: No SCHEDULE IMPACT: 
LOCATION: TOTAL AMOUNT: $10,986.92

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Fountain Lighting Changes

CHANGE REASON: Added Scope

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
CE #013 - Fountain Lighting Changes
Fountain Lighting Changes:
 
REFERENCE 8106 CHANGE EVENT: 176 & PCO 006

ATTACHMENTS:
Hawkins Avenier TC Ftn 8 change order.pdf

# Cost Code Description Type Amount

1 13-1200 - Fountains Fountain Lighting Changes Subcontract $ 10,105.63

2 Electrician Credits Given on PCO 006 $ 0.00

Subtotal: $10,105.63

Liability Insurance: 0.50% Applies to all line item types. $ 50.53

Builders Risk Insurance: 0.35% Applies to all line item types. $ 35.55

P&P Bond: 0.75% Applies to all line item types. $ 76.44

Fee: 7.00% Applies to all line item types. $ 718.77

  Grand Total: $10,986.92

Architect:  Owner/Developer:  Hawkins Construction Inc
    1430 L & R Industrial Blvd
    Tarpon Springs Florida 34689
     
     
     

SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE

Hawkins Construction, Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/1/ 2024  12 :57 PM

PCO #008

Page 182



Page 183



Hawkins Construction, Inc.
1430 L and R Industrial Blvd.
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689
Phone: (727) 938-9719

Project: 2-8107 - Avenir Town Center - Site, Landscape, Irrigation
12253 Northlake Blvd

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33412

Prime Contract Potential Change Order #009:  Exhibit A-14-Landscape
Changes

PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 009 / 0 CREATED BY: Karl Smith  (Hawkins Construction Inc)
REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:   CREATED DATE: 7/1 /2024  

REFERENCE:  

FIELD CHANGE: No SCHEDULE IMPACT: 
LOCATION: TOTAL AMOUNT: $11,084.63

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Exhibit A-14-Landscape Changes

CHANGE REASON: Added Scope

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
CE #021 - Exhibit A-14-Landscape
Exhibit A-14- 06-14-24

ATTACHMENTS:
Change Request Detail - Exhibit A-14 8107.pdf REVISED-AVENIR- 06-23-24.pdf LP-11: Landscape Plan Rev.2.pdf LP-6: LANDSCAPE PLAN
Rev.2.pdf LP-12: LANDSCAPE PLAN Rev.2.pdf LP-10: LANDSCAPE PLAN Rev.2.pdf LP-15: LANDSCAPE PLAN Rev.2.pdf LP-14:
LANDSCAPE PLAN Rev.2.pdf LP-7: Landscape Plan Rev.2.pdf LP-16: LANDSCAPE PLAN Rev.2.pdf LP-17: LANDSCAPE PLAN Rev.3.pdf
LP-1.PH1: LANDSCAPE COVER SHEET Rev.1.pdf LP-13: LANDSCAPE PLAN Rev.2.pdf LP-3: Landscape Plan Rev.2.pdf LP-20.PH1:
LANDSCAPE COVER SHEET Rev.1.pdf

# Cost Code Description Type Amount

1 32-9000 - Landscape Work PH 1 Landscape Subcontract $ 4,750.00

2 32-3350 - Site Furnishings Add Planter Pots Subcontract $ 5,445.51

Subtotal: $10,195.51

Liability Insurance: 0.50% Applies to all line item types. $ 50.98

Builders Risk Insurance: 0.35% Applies to all line item types. $ 35.86

P&P Bond: 0.75% Applies to all line item types. $ 77.12

Fee: 7.00% Applies to all line item types. $ 725.16

  Grand Total: $11,084.63

Architect:  Owner/Developer:  Hawkins Construction Inc
    1430 L & R Industrial Blvd
    Tarpon Springs Florida 34689
     
     
     

SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE

Hawkins Construction, Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/1/ 2024  01 :03 PM

PCO #009

Page 184



Page 185



Invoice
Date

6/23/2024

Invoice #

170

Bill To

Hawkins Costruction
Seth Rains
727 938 9719
Palm Beach USA
AVENIR-TOWN CENTER

Green Go's Landscaping, LLC

11725 SW 91 Terrace
FL 33157

P.O. No. Terms Project

Total

DescriptionQuantity Rate Amount

Landscape-Irrigation installation services 4,750.00 4,750.00

REVISED PLANS  / NEW / 06-14-24 / AVENIR TOWN CENTER  - - PHASE 1

LP-3 REVISED-NEW / ** NO COST CHANGE
LP-6 REVISED-NEW / **NO COST CHANGE
LP-7 REVISED - NEW  / ( ADDITONAL COST )  - - BIO BARRIER ADDED TO
LARGE CANOPY  TREES - FICUS AND OAKS ( PASEO )   - - -  $4,750.00
LP-10 REVISED- NEW / ** NO COST CHANGE
LP-11 REVISED- NEW / ** NO COST CHANGE
LP-12 REVISED-NEW  / **NO COST CHANGE
LP-14 REVISED -NEW / **NO COST CHANGE
LP-15 REVISED- NEW / **NO COST CHANGE
LP-16 REVISED - NEW / **NO COST CHANGE
LP-17 REVISED - NEW / ** NO COST CHANGE

NO CHANGES FOR IRRIGATION (( PHASE 1 )) AS OF O6-23-24

**EXCLUDED***** PLANTERS-POT-STRUCTURAL- HARDSCAPE- DRAINAGE
ROCK#57 / BUILDING OF BERMS-SLOPES- REBUILDING OF BERMS SLOPES

PROJECT: AVENIR TOWN CENTER - PHASE 1

GREEN GO'S LANDSCAPING, LLC
11725 SW 91 TERRACE MIAMI FLORIDA 33186
305 909 5743
JHITCH74@HOTMAIL.COM

$4,750.00

Page 186



Hawkins Construction, Inc.
1430 L and R Industrial Blvd.
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689
Phone: (727) 938-9719

Project: 2-8107 - Avenir Town Center - Site, Landscape, Irrigation
12253 Northlake Blvd

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33412

Prime Contract Potential Change Order #010:  2-8107 - Site Lighting Revisi
PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 010 / 0 CREATED BY: Carrie Golisano  (Hawkins Construction Inc)
REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:   CREATED DATE: 7/1 /2024  

REFERENCE:  

FIELD CHANGE: No SCHEDULE IMPACT: 
LOCATION: TOTAL AMOUNT: $1,105,079.95

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: 2-8107 - Site Lighting Revisi

CHANGE REASON: Added Scope

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
CE #024 - Site Lighting Revisions
Site Lighting Revisions: 
   -Provide accent lighting on offsite roadways per Ryan H
   -Provide Communications conduit onsite, Irrigation Pump Changes, Fountain Changes and Secondary Conduits For Building #7 Across Premier St.

ATTACHMENTS:
Site Lighting Revisions (3).pdf

# Cost Code Description Type Amount

1 26-0500 - Electrical Work Provide accent lighting on offsite roadways per Ryan H Subcontract $ 1,030,800.00

2 31-0500 - Site Work Survey and Layout Allowance CDD Lighitng Subcontract $ 5,000.00

Subtotal: $1,035,800.00

Liability Insurance: 0.50% Applies to all line item types. $ 5,179.00

Builders Risk Insurance: 0.35% Applies to all line item types. $ 3,643.43

P&P Bond: 0.75% Applies to all line item types. $ 7,834.67

Fee: 5.00% Applies to all line item types. $ 52,622.85

  Grand Total: $1,105,079.95

Architect:  Owner/Developer:  Hawkins Construction Inc
    1430 L & R Industrial Blvd
    Tarpon Springs Florida 34689
     
     
     

SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE

Hawkins Construction, Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/3/ 2024  10 :34 AM

PCO #010

Page 187



Hawkins Construction, Inc.
1430 L and R Industrial Blvd.
Tarpon Springs, Florida 34689
Phone: (727) 938-9719

Project: 2-8106 - Avenir Town Center - Publix #1800 & Retails
12253 Northlake Blvd

Palm Bch Garden, Florida 33412

Prime Contract Potential Change Order #005:  Site Lighting Revisions
PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 005 / 1 CREATED BY: Karl Smith  (Hawkins Construction Inc)
REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:   CREATED DATE: 6/11 /2024  

REFERENCE:  

FIELD CHANGE: No SCHEDULE IMPACT: 
LOCATION: TOTAL AMOUNT: $1,105,079.95

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Site Lighting Revisions

CHANGE REASON: Added Scope

POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Site Lighting Revisions
Site Lighting Revisions: Provide accent lighting on offsite roadways per Ryan Holihan.
 
Hawkins Construction, Inc. (HCI) Reserves the right to revisit the project schedule and assess General Condition costs should this work delay or extend
the Grand Opening of the project, which is currently scheduled for 10/31/24.
 
HCI acknowledges that if there is a concurrent delay that extends the Grand Opening date past 10/31/24, HCI will not be entitled to General Conditions
costs but will be entitled to the extension of Time.

ATTACHMENTS:
Publix #1800 - CDE#010 REVISED Site and Accent Lighting Adder.pdf

# Cost Code Description Type Amount

1 26-0500 - Electrical Work Site Lighting Revisions Subcontract $ 1,030,800.00

2 31-0100 - Survey & Layout Survey and Layout Allowance CDD Lighitng Subcontract $ 5,000.00

Subtotal: $1,035,800.00

Liability Insurance: 0.50% Applies to all line item types. $ 5,179.00

Builders Risk Insurance: 0.35% Applies to all line item types. $ 3,643.43

P&P Bond: 0.75% Applies to all line item types. $ 7,834.67

Fee: 5.00% Applies to all line item types. $ 52,622.85

  Grand Total: $1,105,079.95

Architect:  Owner/Developer:  Hawkins Construction Inc
    1430 L & R Industrial Blvd
    Tarpon Springs Florida 34689
     
     
     

SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE  SIGNATURE DATE

Hawkins Construction, Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 6/21/ 2024  10 :36 AM

PCO #005

Page 188



Bryan Schultz

Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Date:

Project:
To: Quoted by:

Email:

QTY TYPE MFG DESCRIPTION UPrice ExtPrice

$13,855.00

QUOTE

Page 201



Date:

Project:
To: Quoted by:

Email:

QTY TYPE MFG DESCRIPTION UPrice ExtPrice

$3,152.00

$4,384.00

$2,364.00

$2,558.00

$1,770.00

QUOTE

Page 202



Date:

Project:
To: Quoted by:

Email:

QTY TYPE MFG DESCRIPTION UPrice ExtPrice

$4,406.00

$1,568.00

$6,936.00

$4,146.00

TO CHANGE TRANSFORMERS IN ORIGINAL ORDER

$970.00

QUOTE

Page 203



Page 204



 Proposal 

Page 205



 Proposal 

Page 206



 Proposal 

Page 207



 Proposal 

Page 208



 Proposal 

Page 209



 Proposal 

Page 210



 Proposal 

Page 211



 Proposal 

Page 212



QUOTE

For operations in Florida: Prima facie evidence of intent to defraud: Failure to return rental property or equipment upon expiration of rental period 
and failure to pay all amounts due (including costs for damage to the property or Equipment) are evidence of abandonment or refusal to redeliver 
the property, punishable in accordance with Section 812.155, Florida Statutes. 

   QTY   EQUIPMENT #                          Min        Day       Week     4 Week       Amount

    1.00 6K-7K 42' TELEHANDLER FORKLIFT    495.00     495.00     950.00    1750.00      1750.00
         0560330

         ***    EQP MSG   ***
         **  ALWAYS REFER TO THE EQUIPMENT LOAD CHART AS TO ACTUAL LIFTING
         CAPACITIES IN ALL THE EQUIPMENT'S LOAD RANGES  **
         WARNING - FORKLIFTS ARE NOT TO BE USED FOR LIFTING PERSONNEL

  SALES ITEMS:
    Qty  Item number                  Unit      Price
      1  DLPKSRCHG                     EA      47.500                                   47.50
         TRANSPORTATION SURCHARGE
      1  ENVIRONMENTAL                 EA      34.120                                   34.12
         2133XXX000 ENVIRON/HAZMAT/DISPOSAL FEE

         DELIVERY CHARGE                                                               125.00

         PICKUP CHARGE                                                                 125.00

                                                            Sub-total:                 2081.62
                                                                  Tax:                  128.22
                                                                Total:                 2209.84

Page 213



QUOTE

For operations in Florida: Prima facie evidence of intent to defraud: Failure to return rental property or equipment upon expiration of rental period 
and failure to pay all amounts due (including costs for damage to the property or Equipment) are evidence of abandonment or refusal to redeliver 
the property, punishable in accordance with Section 812.155, Florida Statutes. 

   QTY   EQUIPMENT #                          Min        Day       Week     4 Week       Amount

 All amounts are in USD

Page 214



SUNBELT RENTALS TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1) DEFINITIONS. “Authorized Individuals” are those individuals that Customer directly or indirectly allows to use the Equipment, who 
must be properly trained to use the Equipment, at least 18 years old or the legal age of majority in the state, whichever is greater and are not under 
the influence of any drugs, alcohol, substances or otherwise impaired. “Customer” is identified earlier and includes any of your representatives, agents, 
officers, employees or anyone signing this Contract on your behalf. “Environmental Services Charge” is the charge described in Section 17. 
“Equipment” is the equipment and/or services identified on the other pages provided, together with all replacements, repairs, additions, attachments 
and accessories and all future Equipment rented. “Incident” is any fine, citation, theft, accident, casualty, loss, vandalism, injury, death or damage to 
person or property, claimed by any person or entity that appears to have occurred in connection with the Equipment. “Lost” means the Equipment is 
either stolen, its location is unknown, or Customer is unable to recover it for a period of 30 days. “FMV” is the Equipment’s fair market value on or 
about the date of the Incident relating to the Equipment, plus any administrative fees and expenses .“One Shift” means not more than 8 hours per 
day, 40 hours per week and 160 hours every 4-week period, provided that double shift will be 150% and triple shift will be 200% of the rental charge 
on Equipment with hour meters. Ordinary Wear and Tear” means normal deterioration considered reasonable in the equipment rental industry for One 
Shift use. “Party” means Sunbelt or Customer and together both are the “Parties”. “Pick-Up Number” is the number Customer obtains from Sunbelt 
evidencing the Customer’s call to pick up Equipment. “Rental Period” commences when the Equipment is delivered to Customer or the Site Address 
and continues until the Equipment is returned to the Store or picked up by Sunbelt during normal business hours, provided Customer has otherwise 
complied with this Contract. “RPP” is the rental protection plan described in Section 10. “Site Address” is the location that Customer represents the 
Equipment will be located during the Rental Period identified earlier. “Store” is the Sunbelt location identified earlier. “Sunbelt” is Sunbelt and its 
affiliated companies, their respective officers, directors, employees and agents. “Telematics Data” is data collected within the Equipment or via 
software relating to the Equipment, its performance, location, or operators. Transportation Surcharge” is a charge intended to defray a wide range of 
transportation expenses (both direct and indirect), which are not always fully recovered by other transportation charges.
2) TERMS.  Customer’s execution of this Contract or taking possession of the Equipment (whichever occurs first) shall be deemed 
acceptance of the terms herein for this and all past and future contracts between Sunbelt and Customer upon Customer’s receipt of Sunbelt’s 
Equipment under those contracts. Customer rents the Equipment from Sunbelt pursuant to this Contract, which is a true lease. The Equipment (a) is 
and shall remain the personal property of Sunbelt and (b) shall not be affixed to any other property. Customer shall not pledge or encumber the 
Equipment in any manner.  
3) PERMITTED USE.  Customer agrees and warrants that (a) Sunbelt has no control over the manner in which the Equipment is 
operated during the Rental Period by Customer or any third party that Customer implicitly or explicitly permits, (b) prior to each use and its return to 
Sunbelt, Customer shall inspect the Equipment to confirm that the Equipment is in good condition, without defects, readable decals are on the 
Equipment, and the Equipment is suitable for Customer’s intended use; (c) Customer has access to and reviews the operating and safety instructions 
and will operate the Equipment in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions and with applicable safety equipment; (d) any apparent agent at 
the Site Address is authorized to accept delivery of the Equipment (and if Customer requests, Customer authorizes Sunbelt to leave the Equipment 
at the Site Address without requirement of written receipt); (e) Customer shall immediately stop use and notify Sunbelt if the Equipment is damaged, 
unsafe, disabled, malfunctioning, warning lights come on, levied upon, threatened with seizure, Lost, or if any Incident occurs; (f) Customer has 
received from Sunbelt all information needed or requested regarding the operation of the Equipment; (g) Sunbelt is not responsible for providing 
operator or other training unless Customer specifically requests in writing and Sunbelt agrees to provide such training (Customer being responsible 
to obtain all training that Customer desires prior to the Equipment’s use); (h) Sunbelt is not responsible for Customer’s obligation to provide reasonable 
accommodation(s) to any (disabled) Authorized Individual(s); (i) only Authorized Individuals shall use and operate the Equipment, however Customer 
is responsible for the Equipment and its use during the Rental Period regardless of the user; (j) the Equipment shall be used and maintained in a 
careful manner, within the Equipment’s capacity and in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, as well as all operating and safety instructions 
provided on, in or with the Equipment and all applicable federal, state and local laws, permits and licenses, including but not limited to, OSHA and 
ADA, as revised; (k) the Equipment shall be kept in a secure location; and (l) Customer shall provide Sunbelt with accurate and complete information, 
which Sunbelt relies upon to provide the appropriate Equipment to Customer. 
4) PROHIBITED USE. Customer shall not (a) alter or cover up any decals or insignia on the Equipment, remove any operating or 
safety equipment or instructions or alter or tamper with the Equipment; (b) assign its rights under this Contract; (c) move the Equipment from the Site 
Address without Sunbelt’s written consent; (d) use the Equipment in a negligent, illegal, unauthorized or abusive manner; or (e)  publicize use of the 
Equipment in any manner (including, without limitation, print, audiovisual or electronic); or (f) allow the use of the Equipment by anyone other than 
Authorized Individuals (Customer acknowledging that the Equipment may be dangerous if used improperly or by untrained parties).
5) MAINTENANCE. Customer shall perform routine maintenance on the Equipment, including routine inspections and maintenance 
of fuel and oil levels, grease, cooling and fluid systems, batteries, tires/tracks cutting edges, and cleaning in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
specifications, as applicable. All other maintenance or repairs may only be performed by Sunbelt or its agents, but Sunbelt has no responsibility during 
the Rental Period to inspect or perform any maintenance or repairs unless Customer requests a service call. If Sunbelt determines that repairs to the 
Equipment are needed, other than Ordinary Wear and Tear, Customer shall pay the full repair charges, additional fees, if any, and rental of the 
Equipment until the repairs are completed. If Equipment is stolen or damaged in excess of 40% of the Equipment’s FMV, Customer will be responsible 
for the FMV of the Equipment, including sales tax, as applicable.  Sunbelt has the right to inspect the Equipment wherever located. Customer has the 
authority to and hereby grants Sunbelt and its agents the right to enter the physical location of the Equipment for the purposes set forth herein. Sunbelt 
shall be responsible for repairs needed because of Ordinary Wear and Tear. Customer agrees that repair or replacement of the Equipment is 
Customer’s exclusive remedy for Sunbelt’s breach of this Section. Notwithstanding Sunbelt’s service commitment, if Customer breaches this Contract, 
Sunbelt shall have no obligation to stop the Rental Period, commence repairs or rent other equipment to Customer until Customer or its agent agrees 
to pay for such charges. 
6) CUSTOMER LIABILITY. DURING THE RENTAL PERIOD, CUSTOMER ASSUMES ALL RISK ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
POSSESSION, CONTROL OR USE OF THE EQUIPMENT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, RENTAL 
CHARGES, THEFT, LOSSES, DAMAGES AND DESTRUCTION, INCLUDING CUSTOMER TRANSPORTATION, LOADING AND UNLOADING, 
WHETHER OR NOT THE CUSTOMER IS AT FAULT. After an Incident, Customer shall (a) immediately notify Sunbelt, the police, if necessary, and 
Customer’s insurance carriers; (b) secure and maintain the Equipment and the surrounding premises in the condition existing at the time of such 
Incident, until Sunbelt or its agents investigate; (c) immediately submit copies of all police or other third party reports to Sunbelt; and (d) as applicable, 
pay Sunbelt, in addition to other sums due herein, the rental rate for Equipment until the repairs are completed or Equipment replaced plus either (i) 
the FMV or (ii) the full charges of recovery and repairs of damaged Equipment. Accrued rental charges shall not be applied against these amounts. 
Sunbelt shall have the immediate right, but not obligation, to reclaim any Equipment involved in any Incident. 
7) NO WARRANTIES.  SUNBELT DISCLAIMS ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH 
RESPECT TO THE EQUIPMENT, ITS DURABILITY, CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, OR FITNESS FOR ANY 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES ACCEPTANCE OF THE EQUIPMENT ON AN “AS IS, WHERE IS” BASIS, WITH “ALL 
FAULTS” AND WITHOUT ANY RECOURSE WHATSOEVER AGAINST SUNBELT ENTITIES. CUSTOMER ASSUMES ALL RISKS ASSOCIATED 
WITH THE EQUIPMENT AND RELEASES SUNBELT ENTITIES FROM ALL LIABILITIES AND DAMAGES (INCLUDING LOST PROFITS, 
PERSONAL INJURY, AND SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL AND CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH 
DAMAGES) IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THE EQUIPMENT, ITS INSTALLATION, OPERATION OR USE OR ANY DEFECT OR FAILURE 
THEREOF, A BREACH OF SUNBELT’S OBLIGATIONS HEREIN OR ERRORS OR INACCURACIES IN INFORMATION OBTAINED FROM 
CUSTOMER OR THIRD PARTIES, UPON WHICH SUNBELT RELIES; PROVIDED HOWEVER, IF CUSTOMER IS A CONSUMER UNDER 
APPLICABLE LAW, THEN NO CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES LIMITIATION OF INJURIES TO PERSONS SHALL APPLY.  
8) RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, CUSTOMER INDEMNIFIES, 
RELEASES, HOLDS SUNBELT ENTITIES HARMLESS AND AT SUNBELT’S REQUEST, DEFENDS SUNBELT ENTITIES (WITH COUNSEL 
APPROVED BY SUNBELT), FROM AND AGAINST ALL LIABILITIES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING 
ATTORNEY’S AND/OR LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES) HOWEVER ARISING OR INCURRED, RELATED TO ANY INCIDENT, DAMAGE TO 
PROPERTY, INJURY OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, CONTAMINATION OR ALLEGED CONTAMINATION, OR VIOLATION OF LAW OR 
REGULATION CAUSED BY OR CONNECTED WITH THE (a) ACCESS, USE, POSSESSION OR CONTROL OF THE EQUIPMENT BY 
CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD PARTY THAT CUSTOMER IMPLICITLY OR EXPLICITLY PERMITS TO ACCESS, USE, POSSESS OR CONTROL 
THE EQUIPMENT DURING THE RENTAL PERIOD OR (b) BREACH OF THIS CONTRACT, WHETHER OR NOT CAUSED IN PART BY THE 
ACTIVE OR PASSIVE NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER FAULT OF ANY PARTY INDEMNIFIED HEREIN AND ANY OF THE FOREGOING ARISING OR 
IMPOSED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DOCTRINE OF STRICT OR ABSOLUTE LIABILITY. CUSTOMER ALSO AGREES TO WAIVE ITS 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION IMMUNITY, TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE. CUSTOMER’S INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS SHALL SURVIVE THE 
EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS CONTRACT. All of Customer’s indemnification obligations under this paragraph shall be joint and several. 
9) INSURANCE. During the Rental Period, Customer shall maintain, at its own expense, the following minimum insurance coverage: 
(a) for Customers using Equipment for non personal use, general liability insurance of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, including coverage 
for Customer’s contractual liabilities herein such as the release and indemnification clause contained in Section 8; (b) for Customers using Equipment 
for non personal use, property insurance against loss by all risks to the Equipment, in an amount at least equal to the FMV thereof, unless RPP is 
elected at the time of rental and paid for prior to any Incident; (c) worker’s compensation insurance as required by law; and (d) automobile liability 
insurance (including comprehensive and collision coverage, and uninsured/underinsured motorist coverage), in the same amounts set forth in 
subsections (a) and (b), if the Equipment is to be used on any roadway. Such policies shall be primary, non-contributory, on an occurrence basis, 
contain a waiver of subrogation, name Sunbelt and its agents as an additional insured (including an additional insured endorsement) and loss payee, 
and provide for Sunbelt to receive at least 30 days prior written notice of any cancellation or material change. Any insurance that excludes boom 
damage or overturns is a breach. Customer shall provide Sunbelt with certificates of insurance to insurancecertificates@sunbeltrentals.com 
evidencing the coverages required above prior to any rental and any time upon Sunbelt’s request. To the extent Sunbelt Entities carry any insurance, 
Sunbelt Entities’ insurance will be considered excess insurance. The insurance required herein does not relieve Customer of its responsibilities, 
indemnification, or other obligations provided herein, or for which Customer may be liable by law or otherwise. 
10) RENTAL PROTECTION PLAN. Customer’s repair or replacement responsibility in Sections 5 and 6 of this Contract is modified 
by the RPP, if offered on the Equipment, and Sunbelt shall limit the amount Sunbelt collects from Customer for the Equipment loss, damage or 
destruction to the following amounts for each piece of Equipment, per each occurrence: (a) 10% of the FMV for Lost Equipment, up to a maximum of 
$500 per piece of Equipment; (b) 10% of the repair charges for incidental or accidental damage to Equipment, up to a maximum of $500 per piece of 
Equipment; (c) charges in excess of $50 per tire for tire repairs; and (d) nothing for the rental charges which would otherwise accrue during the period 
when damaged or destroyed Equipment is being repaired or replaced by Sunbelt or Lost Equipment is being replaced; provided however, the foregoing 
RPP liability reduction only applies if the Conditions (defined below) are satisfied and an Exclusion (defined below) does not apply. The RPP is NOT 
INSURANCE and does NOT protect Customer from liability to Sunbelt or others arising out of possession, control or use of the Equipment, including 
injury or damage to persons or property. THE RPP IS A CONTRACTUAL MODIFICATION OF CUSTOMER’S LIABILITY. All of the 
following “Conditions” must be satisfied for the RPP and the corresponding liability reduction to apply: (i) Customer accepts the RPP in advance of 
the rental; (ii) Customer pays 15% of the gross rental charges as the fee for the RPP (plus applicable taxes); (iii) Customer fully complies with the 
terms of this Contract; (iv) Customer’s account is current at the time of the loss, theft, damage or destruction of the Equipment; and (v) none of the 
Exclusions apply. Customer assumes the Exclusion risks, meaning that if any Exclusion occurs, the RPP does NOT reduce the liability of Customer 
to Sunbelt for the loss, theft, damage or destruction resulting from such Exclusion. “Exclusions” shall mean loss, theft, damage or destruction of the 
Equipment: (A) due to intentional misuse; (B) caused by Lost Equipment not reported by Customer to the police within 48 hours of discovery, and 
substantiated by a written police report (promptly delivered to Sunbelt); (C) due to floods, water level changes, wind, storms, earthquakes or Acts of 
God; and (D) accessories or Equipment for which Customer is not charged the RPP fee. THE EXCLUSIONS REMAIN THE LIABILITY OF 
CUSTOMER AND ARE NOT MODIFIED BY THE RPP. RPP IS REFLECTED ON THIS CONTRACT AS PART OF CUSTOMER’S ESTIMATED 
CHARGES UNLESS CUSTOMER HAS ELECTED TO DECLINE RPP IN WRITING, FAILS TO PAY THE RPP FEE OR MADE OTHER 
CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS WITH SUNBELT.   Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Contract, if Lost Equipment is later recovered, 
Sunbelt retains ownership of the Equipment regardless of any payments made by Customer or Customer’s insurance company with respect to such 
Equipment, all of which payments are non-refundable. Customer agrees to promptly return any Equipment that is recovered. Sunbelt shall be 
subrogated to Customer’s rights to recover against any person or entity relating to any loss, theft, damage or destruction to the Equipment. Customer 

shall cooperate with, assign Sunbelt all claims and proceeds arising from such loss, theft, damage or destruction, execute and deliver to Sunbelt 
whatever documents are required and take all other necessary steps to secure in Sunbelt such rights, at Customer’s expense. 
11) RENTAL RATES. The total charges specified in this Contract are: (a) estimated based upon Customer’s representation of the 
estimated Rental Period identified herein (rental rates beyond the estimated Rental Period may change) and other information conveyed by Customer 
to Sunbelt; and (b) for the Equipment’s use for One Shift, unless otherwise noted. Weekly and 4 week rental rates shall not be prorated. Rental 
charges accrue during Saturdays, Sundays and holidays. The rental rates do not include and Customer is responsible for, (i) all consumables, fees, 
licenses, present and future taxes and any other governmental charges based on Customer’s possession and/or use of the Equipment, including 
additional fees for more than One Shift use; (ii) delivery and pickup charges to and from the Store, including but not limited to any freight, transportation, 
delivery, pickup and surcharge fees listed in this Contract; (iii) maintenance, repairs and replacements to the Equipment as provided herein; (iv) a 
cleaning fee if required; (v) miscellaneous charges, such as fees for lost keys, RPP, costs to recover Equipment, emergency mobilization or store 
opening; (vi) fuel used during the Rental Period and for refueling Equipment as described below; (vii) fines for use of dyed diesel fuel in on-road 
Equipment; and (viii) an Environmental Services Charge (see www.sunbeltrentals.com/environmentalfee) and (ix) Transportation Surcharge 
(see www.sunbeltrentals.com/surcharge). The convenience charge for off road diesel fuel does not include governmental motor fuel taxes or charges. 
Sunbelt collects these fees as revenue and uses them at its discretion. 
12) PAYMENT. Customer shall pay for the rental of Equipment, sale of Equipment, materials and all other items and services identified 
in this Contract and all other amounts due, without any offsets, in full, in advance at the time of rental, unless Sunbelt approves Customer’s executed 
commercial credit application.  Commercial customers who are approved for Sunbelt’s extended payment terms must pay, in arrears, upon receipt of 
Sunbelt’s invoice, either by cash, check or ACH. Customer must notify Sunbelt in writing of any disputed amounts, including credit card charges, 
within 15 days after the receipt of the invoice/contract or Customer shall be deemed to have irrevocably waived its right to dispute such amounts. At 
Sunbelt’s discretion, any account with a delinquent balance may be placed on a cash basis, deposits may be required and the Equipment may be 
picked up without notice. Due to the difficulty in fixing actual damages caused by late payment, Customer agrees that a service charge equal to the 
lesser of 1.5% per month or the maximum rate permitted by law shall be assessed on all delinquent accounts, until paid in full. Customer shall 
reimburse Sunbelt for all costs incurred in collecting any late payments, including, without limitation, attorneys' fees. Payment of any late charge does 
not excuse Customer of any default under this Contract. Customer shall pay a fee of $75 for each check returned for lack of sufficient funds to 
compensate Sunbelt for its overhead for processing missed payment. Deposits will only be returned after all amounts are paid in full. CUSTOMER 
AGREES THAT IF A CREDIT OR DEBIT CARD IS PRESENTED TO PAY FOR CHARGES OR TO GUARANTEE PAYMENT, CUSTOMER 
AUTHORIZES SUNBELT TO CHARGE THE CREDIT OR DEBIT CARD ALL AMOUNTS SHOWN ON THIS CONTRACT AND CHARGES 
SUBSEQUENTLY INCURRED BY CUSTOMER, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF OR DAMAGE TO THE EQUIPMENT AND 
EXTENSION OF THE RENTAL PERIOD. Effective June 1, 2021 and where permitted by law, Sunbelt may impose a surcharge of 2% (minimum $3) 
for credit card payments on charge accounts.  This surcharge is not greater than Sunbelt's merchant discount rate for credit card transactions and is 
subject to sales tax in some jurisdictions.
13) RETURN OF EQUIPMENT. Sunbelt may terminate this Contract at any time, for any reason. The Equipment shall be returned to 
Sunbelt (when needed for inspections, maintenance and at the end of the Rental Period) in the same condition it was received, less Ordinary Wear 
and Tear and free of any hazardous materials and contaminants. Customer will return the Equipment at the end of the Rental Period, but will continue 
to be responsible for rental and other charges after the Rental Period if the Equipment is not returned in the condition required herein. If Sunbelt 
delivered the Equipment to Customer, Customer shall notify Sunbelt that the Equipment is ready to be picked up at the Site Address and obtain a 
Pick-Up Number, which Pick-Up Number Customer should keep as proof of the call; provided Customer remains liable for any loss, theft, damage to 
or destruction of the Equipment until Sunbelt confirms that the Equipment is returned in the condition required herein. Customer will not be charged 
the rental charges after the date the Pick-Up Number is given, provided Customer has otherwise complied with this Contract. No pickups occur on 
Sundays or statutory holidays and Saturday pickups are dependent on specific Store hours. If Customer picked up Equipment, Customer shall return 
Equipment to the same Store during that Store’s normal business hours. If the Equipment is not returned by the estimated end of the Rental Period 
specified earlier, Customer agrees to pay the applicable rental rate for the Equipment until the end of the Rental Period. 
14) PURCHASES. If this Contract identifies any Equipment, materials or other items that is to be purchased by Customer, Sunbelt 
sells and delivers such items to Customer on an “AS IS, WHERE IS” basis, with all faults and without any warranties (other than manufacturer 
warranties, if any) in consideration for Customer’s payment to Sunbelt of the full purchase price of the item, Sunbelt retains title to the item until 
Customer has paid in full.  
15) DEFAULT. Customer shall be in default if Sunbelt deems itself insecure or if Customer: (a) fails to pay sums when due; (b) 
breaches any Section of this Contract; (c) becomes a debtor in a bankruptcy proceeding, goes into receivership, takes protection from its creditors 
under any insolvency legislation, ceases to carry on business, or has its assets seized by any creditor; (d) fails to insure the Equipment as required, 
or otherwise places the Equipment at risk; (e) fails to return Equipment immediately upon Sunbelt’s demand; or (f) is in default under any other contract 
with Sunbelt. If a Customer default occurs, Sunbelt shall have, in addition to all rights and remedies at law or in equity, the right to repossess the 
Equipment without judicial process or prior notice. Customer shall pay all of Sunbelt’s costs, including reasonable costs of collection, court costs, 
attorneys and legal fees, incurred in exercising any of its rights or remedies herein. Sunbelt shall not be liable due to seizure of Equipment by order 
of governmental authority.   CUSTOMER WAIVES ANY RIGHT OF ACTION AGAINST SUNBELT ENTITIES FOR SUCH REPOSSESSION.
16) CRIMINAL WARNING.  The use of false identification to obtain Equipment or the failure to return Equipment by the end of the 
Rental Period may be considered theft, subject to criminal prosecution and civil liability where permitted, pursuant to applicable laws.  
17) ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES CHARGE. To promote a clean and sustainable environment, Sunbelt takes various measures to 
comply with applicable environmental regulations, as well as with Sunbelt’s own policies. Sunbelt also incurs a wide range of environmental related 
expenses (both direct and indirect). These expenses may include services such as waste disposal, construction and maintenance of cleaning facilities, 
acquisition of more fuel-efficient equipment, as well as, labor costs, administration costs, etc. To help offset these and other costs, Sunbelt assesses 
an Environmental Services Charge, plus applicable taxes thereon in connection with certain rentals. The Environmental Services Charge is not a tax 
or governmentally mandated charge and is not designated for any particular use or placed in an escrow account, but is a charge that Sunbelt collects 
as revenue and uses at its discretion. 
18) FUEL. For Equipment that uses fuel, Customer has three options: (a) Prepay Fuel Option - Customer may purchase a full tank of 
fuel for the Equipment at the start of the rental, in which case a “convenience charge” will appear on this Contract (calculated by multiplying the 
estimated fuel capacity of Equipment by the Prepay per gallon rate). As an added benefit, Customer may return the Equipment full of fuel and the 
convenience charge will be refunded (however, if not returned full, Customer will not obtain any credit for fuel left in the Equipment upon return); (b) 
Pay on Return Option - if Customer returns Equipment with less fuel than when received, Customer shall pay a refueling charge (calculated by 
multiplying gallons required to refill tank with fuel to level when received, by the Pay on Return per gallon rate); and (c) Return Full Option – if Customer 
returns the Equipment with at least as much fuel as when it was received (most Sunbelt Equipment comes with a full tank of fuel, but not all), no fuel 
charge will be assessed. The cost of Customer refueling Equipment itself will generally be lower than the Prepay Fuel Option or the Pay on Return 
Option; however these options each allow for the convenience of not refueling.  Customer agrees that none of these options are a retail sale of fuel. 
19) LIMITATION OF SUNBELT’S LIABILITY. IN CONSIDERATION OF THE RENTAL OF EQUIPMENT, CUSTOMER AGREES 
THAT SUNBELT’S LIABILITY UNDER THIS CONTRACT, INCLUDING ANY LIABILITY ARISING FROM SUNBELT’S, SUNBELT ENTITIES, OR 
ANY THIRD PARTY’S COMPARATIVE, CONCURRENT, CONTRIBUTORY, PASSIVE OR ACTIVE NEGLIGENCE OR THAT ARISES AS A 
RESULT OF ANY STRICT OR ABSOLUTE LIABILITY, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE TOTAL RENTAL CHARGES PAID BY CUSTOMER UNDER 
THIS CONTRACT.
20) JURY TRIAL WAIVER. IN ANY DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF, IN CONNECTION WITH, OR IN ANY WAY PERTAINING TO 
THIS CONTRACT, CUSTOMER AND SUNBELT HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL 
BY JURY, THIS WAIVER BEING A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT TO ENTERING INTO THIS CONTRACT.
21) ARBITRATION AGREEMENT & CLASS ACTION WAIVER. AT THE ELECTION OF CUSTOMER OR SUNBELT, ANY 
DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF, IN CONNECTION WITH OR IN ANY WAY PERTAINING TO THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE SETTLED BY 
ARBITRATION BROUGHT IN THE PARTY’S INDIVIDUAL CAPACITY AND NOT AS A PLAINTIFF IN A PURPORTED CLASS OR 
REPRESENTATIVE CAPACITY, ADMINISTERED BY THE AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION UNDER ITS COMMERCIAL 
ARBITRATION RULES OR BY JAMS PURSUANT TO ITS STREAMLINED ARBITRATION RULES AND PROCEDURES AND JUDGEMENT ON 
THE AWARD RENDERED BY THE ARBITRATOR(S) MAY BE ENTERED IN ANY COURT HAVING JURISDICTION THEREOF. THERE SHALL 
BE NO RIGHT OR AUTHORITY FOR ANY CLAIMS TO BE ARBITRATED OR TRIED ON A CLASS ACTION BASIS.
22) COMPLIANCE WITH EXPORT AND IMPORT LAWS. Removal of the Equipment from the United States (“U.S.”) is prohibited 
under this Contract. If Customer desires or causes the transport and/or operation of the Equipment outside of the U.S., Customer must (a) obtain 
Sunbelt’s consent prior to taking such action, including approval of established customs broker, and (b) execute an amendment to this Contract, which 
amendment is incorporated herein. If Customer exports or re-exports without complying with the above sentence, Customer agrees that (i) the 
Equipment is subject to and must comply with all applicable export laws, including but not limited to the Export Administration Regulations; and (ii) 
Customer, as the exporter/importer of record, is responsible for: (A) determining whether and obtaining if necessary, export or re-export licenses or 
other authorizations as required prior to exporting or re-exporting the Equipment, (B) obtaining any required documentation necessary for return of 
the Equipment, and (C) ensuring no unauthorized transfers or diversions of the Equipment occur. Refer to www.bis.doc.gov for information. 
23) COLLECTION OF DATA.  Customer consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the data and information Customer 
voluntarily provides to Sunbelt, including personal identifiable information and financial information, as well as the Telematics Data collected from the 
Equipment, as described in our Privacy Policy found at www.sunbeltrentals.com/privacypolicy. 
24) GOVERNING LAW.  The Parties expressly and irrevocably agree: (a) this Contract, including any related tort claims, shall be 
governed by the laws of South Carolina, without regard to any conflicts of law principles and (b) if any Section of this Contract is prohibited by any 
law, such Section shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition without invalidating the remaining Sections. 
25) FORCE MAJEURE. Sunbelt shall not be liable or responsible to the Customer, nor be deemed to have defaulted under or 
breached this Contract, for any failure or delay in fulfilling or performing any term of this Contract when and to the extent such failure or delay is 
caused by or results from acts beyond Sunbelt’s control, including, without limitation, the following force majeure events ("Force Majeure Event(s)"): 
(a) acts of God; (b) flood, fire, earthquake, epidemics, pandemics or explosion; (c) war, invasion, hostilities (whether war is declared or not), terrorist 
threats or acts, riot or other civil unrest; (d) government order, law, regulations, shutdowns, or actions; (e) embargoes or blockades in effect on or 
after the date of this Contract; (f) national or regional emergency; (g) strikes, labor stoppages or slowdowns, or other industrial disturbances; (h) 
shortage of adequate power or transportation facilities; and (i) other events beyond the control of Sunbelt. 
26) MISCELLANEOUS. This Contract, together with any Customer executed commercial credit application, if any, constitutes the 
entire agreement of the Parties regarding the Equipment and may not be modified except by written amendment signed by the Parties. Any reference 
in Customer's purchase order or other Customer document to other terms that shall control this transaction shall be void. This Contract benefits solely 
the Parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns and nothing in this Contract, express or implied, confers on any other person any 
legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Contract.  Customer’s obligations hereunder shall 
survive the termination of this Contract. If any term is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any 
other term or invalidate or render unenforceable such term. This Contract and all of Customer’s rights in and to the Equipment are subordinate to all 
rights, title and interest of all persons (including Sunbelt’s lenders) who have rights in the Equipment. Headings are for convenience only. To the 
extent that any terms in this Contract conflict, the Parties agree that the more specific terms control. A copy of this Contract shall be valid as the 
original. Any failure by Sunbelt to insist upon strict performance of any Section of this Contract shall not be construed as a waiver of the right to 
demand strict performance in the future. Customer and the person signing this Contract agree, represent and warrant that: (a) the person executing 
is 18 or the legal age of majority in the state, whichever is greater and they both have full authority to execute, deliver and perform this Contract; and 
(b) this Contract constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Customer, enforceable in accordance with its terms. If the Parties have a fully 
executed, active agreement, intended to govern over conflicting terms and conditions, such agreement shall take precedence over the terms herein.
     
Additional terms and conditions for Shoring can be found at https://www.sunbeltrentals.com/about/shoring-bridging-additional-terms-and-conditions/

 Rev Date 06/16/2021                        

Page 215



Page 1 
Owner_______     Contractor_______ 

 

 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 
 

 
Date of Issuance:   

 
August 22, 2024 

 
Effective Date: 

 
April 10, 2024 

 
Owner:   

 
Avenir Community 
Development District 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410 

 
Owner's  
Contract No.: 

 
N/A 

 
Contractor:   

 
SPF UNDERGROUND 
UTILITIES, INC. 
1220 SW Dyer Point Road, 
Palm City, FL 34990 

 
Contractor’s 
Project No.: 

 
N/A 

 
Engineer:   

 
Ballbe & Associates, Inc. 

 
Engineer's  
Project No.: 

 
202119 

 
Project:   

 
AVENIR SPINE ROAD PHASE 5 

 
Contract Name: 

 
Construction Contract  
 

 
The Contract is modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:  
 
Description:   

▪ Miscellaneous field work  
  

Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE 
 

Original Contract Price: 
$285,000.00 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES 
 
Original Contract Times: 
N/A 
 
 
 

 
[Increase] [Decrease] form previously approved 
Change Orders No. 0  to No. _2__: 
$130,476.50 

 

 
[Increase] [Decrease] form previously approved 
Change Orders No.___ to No. ___: 
None 

 
Contract Price prior to this Change Order: 
$415,476.50 
 

 
Contract Times prior to this Change Order: 
N/A 

Page 216



Page 2 

 
[Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order 
$13,280.80 
 

 
[Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order 
None 
 

 
Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: 
$428,757.30 
 
 

 
Contract Times with all the approved Change 
Orders: 
None 
 

 
RECOMMENDED: 

 
By: _______________________ 
Ballbe & Associates, Inc. 
Carlos J. Ballbé 
President 
 
 
Date: _8/22/2024 

 

 
ACCEPTED: 

 
 
 
 
 

By: ______________________ 
Avenir Community Development 
District 
 
 
 
Date: __________ 

 

 
ACCEPTED: 

 
 
 
 
 
By: ________________________ 
SPF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, 
INC Scott Fruggiero  
President 
 
 
Date: __________ 

 

 
EJCDC® C-941, Change Order. Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents 
Committee.  

 

Page 217



Page 3 

Owner_______     Contractor_______ 
 

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 218



Change Order Request
Date

7/1/2024

Change Order #

70124AA

Name / Address

Avenir Community
 Development District
Spine 5

SPF Underground Utilities, Inc.
1220 SW Dyer Point Rd
Palm City, FL 34990

CO Project

Avenir Spine 5

Attn: Keith O'Brien

772-263-0102

scott.spfunderground@gmail.com

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

Avenir  WPB     Attn: Keith O'Brien

Northlake and Coconut Entrance 0.00 0.00

East side of fountain located and marked 2 (2") conduit   (6/24/24) 8 210.00 1,680.00

Located (2) 2" conduit at meter location on west side of fountain 
(6/25/24)

8 210.00 1,680.00

Installed 40' of pipe, backfilled, blew string  and cleaned up area

Equipment (E50, skid steer & compressor) 1 2,750.00 2,750.00

$6,110.00

Page 219



Change Order Request
Date

7/8/2024

Change Order #

70824DD

Name / Address

Florida Select Builders Corp
AVENIR

SPF Underground Utilities, Inc.
1220 SW Dyer Point Rd
Palm City, FL 34990

CO Project

Attn: Keith O'Brien

772-263-0102

scott.spfunderground@gmail.com

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

Avenir  WPB     Attn: Keith O'Brien and Carlos

Lift Station Spine 5 completed work 0.00 0.00

Had to dig up line C phase pipe,  Repaired broken pipe, backfill and
grade

8 210.00 1,680.00

Equipment (E50) 1 848.00 848.00

$2,528.00

Page 220



INVOICE
DATE

6/19/2024

INVOICE #

61924A

NAME/ADDRESS

Florida Select Builders Corp
AVENIR

SPF Underground Utilities, Inc.
1220 SW Dyer Point Rd
Palm City, FL 34990

PO/WO PROJECT ATTN:

Keith

Phone #

772-263-0102

E-mail

scott.spfunderground@gmail.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Description Qty Rate Total

Avenir    WPB   Attn: Keith O'Brien

Labor to complete moving of material per request  (cleared POD
5A)

16 70.00 1,120.00

2 guys 8 hours
Equipment rental  DL220 Loader and Pallet Fork 1 3,522.80 3,522.80

$4,642.80

$4,642.80

$0.00

Page 221



 
 

 
 
 

Monthly Managers Report 
August 22, 2024 

 
Date of Report: 8/15/2024        __Submitted by: Richard Salvatore 
 

o Completed Tasks 

 The approved gate addition, at the tennis court entryway, has been completed.  
 There is now one singular access point to enter the tennis complex, where 

access control will be installed for a smoother resident experience. 

 Repairs and resurfacing of clay courts, due to rain washout, lack of proper draining, etc., 
have been completed by the maintenance team. 

 Shampoo and wash of all interior carpets has been completed. 

 Annual generator run and test has been completed. 
  

o Ongoing Tasks 

 Contracting/Scheduling of the high voltage access control expansion is underway, with 
Mr. Sparky, awaiting permit approval. 

 Contracting/Scheduling of the low voltage access control expansion is underway, with 
Automatic Access, awaiting vendor site visit for final permitting and invoicing. 

 The process of finding a new tennis court maintenance company has begun. 
 Still going to be contracted through the current tennis vendor(Play Academy), 

fall under their insurance, etc. 

 Awaiting the arrival of the previously approved storage shed, grading of landscaping, 
etc. 

 The splash pad is currently closed due to the flooring and jets beginning to bubble, lift, 
and break.  
 The original install vendor (Rockstar Pools) has been contacted and has visited 

the site / inspected damage. 
 An additional vendor is needed to repair the lifted/cracking specialized flooring. 

 This is being handled and coordinated by Rockstar pools. 
 Anticipating a return and final repair the week of 8/19. 

 
o Future Items 

 Gutter addition on the front of building to reduce washout from heavy rains. 
o Have been instructed to work with Architect to accomplish this. 

 Gutter addition on back pavilions to reduce washout and pool deck staining from the 
copper roof. 

o Have been instructed to work with Architect to accomplish this. 

 Resurfacing/Repairing of hard top tennis courts is being considered due to surface 
cracking. 

o The original install vendor contacted, working to rectify issue in a cost effective 
manner. 

 

Page 222



 
 

o Items for Consideration: 
 
 
 

 
 

Business Plan - Prosecco Café Pop-Up 
 Avenir Community Clubhouse 

Objective: 
o The proposed pop-up café aims to enhance the lifestyle of Avenir residents by providing a daily amenity 

that offers top-quality Italian coffee (Cappuccino and Latte), freshly baked goods from Prosecco Café, and 

breakfast sandwiches. This initiative not only improves the quality of life within the community but also has 

the potential to increase property values, making it a mutually beneficial endeavor for both the residents 

and the community. 

 

Concept: 
o The pop-up café will operate daily from 8:00 AM to 11:00 AM within the Avenir Community Clubhouse 

kitchen (Proposal only). Homeowners will be able to order on their phone from a special App, drive to the 

clubhouse front door for a curbside service or for a pickup from the front door area. The focus is on 

delivering a premium café experience, like what residents would find in upscale cafes, conveniently located 

within their own community. The service will be exclusive to Avenir residents, fostering a sense of 

community and providing a new amenity that aligns with the upscale living standards of Avenir. 

 

Product Offerings: 
o Beverages: Premium Italian coffee (Cappuccino, Latte, Espresso). 

o Food: Freshly baked goods from Prosecco Cafe (such as pastries, croissants, and more), and a selection of 

breakfast sandwiches. 

 

Benefits to the Avenir Community: 
o VIP Club: 

The residents will enjoy a VIP program that includes special discounts at all our locations as part of the 

Loyalty Program. This includes Prosecco Café, and The Dancing Crane. 

o Enhanced Community Experience:  

The café offers a new, daily gathering space for residents, which can increase social interactions and build a 

stronger community spirit.                                   

Providing high-quality amenities like this café can make Avenir a more desirable place to live, potentially 

increasing property values. 

o Cost-Neutral for the Community:  

There are no costs to the Avenir community for this service, as all operational investments will be handled 

by Prosecco Café.  

o Marketing and Promotion:  

o The clubhouse is committed to actively promoting the pop-up café to homeowners via social media, emails 

and other communication channels, ensuring that residents are aware of and can take full advantage of 

this new amenity. 

 

Page 223



 
 

 

 

 

Operational Plan: 
o Location: The café will operate out of the Avenir Clubhouse kitchen. 

o Hours of Operation: Daily from 8:00 AM to 11:00 AM. 

o Target Audience: Exclusive to Avenir residents, on their way to work, or dropping their kids for the school 

bus. 

o Marketing: Promotion will be carried out by the clubhouse through internal communications and social 

media. 

 

Financial Plan: 
o Investment: Prosecco Cafe will cover the costs of the Espresso Machine, the POS system required for 

operations and the cost of Labor, and any Insurance requirements associated with this service. 

o Facility Usage: Avenir will provide the kitchen space in the clubhouse at no charge, facilitating the trial run 

of this initiative and will oversee all licensing requirements and utilities.  

 

 

 

Trial Period: 
This plan will begin as a trial initiative by Prosecco Café to assess its feasibility and success within the Avenir 

community. The goal is to gather feedback, monitor participation rates, and evaluate the overall impact on the 

community. If the trial is successful, a long-term arrangement that benefits both Prosecco Café and the Avenir 

community should be put in place where Prosecco Café will have the first right to provide Food and Beverage 

services to the Clubhouse. 

 

Conclusion: 
This pop-up café initiative is in the best interest of the Avenir community. It offers a high-quality amenity at no cost 

to residents while providing an opportunity to further elevate the living experience at Avenir. The success of this 

plan depends largely on resident participation, and with proper promotion and engagement, it has the potential to 

become a valued staple within the community. 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 224



 
 

 
 

Lifestyle Directors Report 
 

Date of Report: 8/14/2024                                           Submitted by: Patrice Chiaramonte 
 

”My First Art Class” Tuesday July 2nd 2024 

The Avenir Clubhouse is now offering “My First Art Class”. My first art 

class is a caretaker and child play group that will allow our youngest 

artist to play in an environment of diverse art and sensory experiences. 

This class promotes creativity, and both the toddlers and parents love 

it! This class is paid for by residents through one of our trusted art 

vendors Studiofive6. https://studiofive6.com/  

 

 

“Paint your Partner Tik Tok Challenge” Friday July 19th 2024 Residents attended a fun date night with 

their partners. The idea is to paint each other's portrait and finish your artwork without peeking. At the 

end of the session, partners revealed their portraits to each other. This event was paid for by residents 

through one of our trusted art vendors Studiofive6. https://studiofive6.com/  

 

 

 

 

Page 225



 
 

“Firepit Festival” Saturday July 20th 2024 Residents enjoyed an evening of 681 Seafood Truck, Le Coin a 

Crepe, Live music from Mercier’s Music, & other vendors! https://www.681seafood.com/ 

https://lecoinacrepe.com/  

 

 

 

“Café Tico Coffee Food Truck” Saturday July 27th 2024 

Residents enjoyed a morning of coffee from Café Tico Food 

Truck.  

https://cafe-tico.us/  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 226



 
 

Field Operations Manager Report 
 

Date Submitted:  8/14/24                       _______________    Submitted by: Jorge Rodriguez 
 
Completed Tasks 

 Both Playgrounds have been pressure washed / surface scrubbed 

 All A/C unit’s drain lines have been cleaned and treated. 

 All A/C unit filters have been replaced. 

 All tennis court screens have been reinstalled back on the fences after the recent storms.  

 
Weekly Projects 

 All garbage cans outside the clubhouse, within tennis and pickleball courts, and down Avenir 

Drive and Northlake Blvd are emptied and cleaned as needed. 

 All exterior light fixtures are inspected nightly, and Interior lights are inspected daily. 

 The 6 Clay Tennis Courts are raked and rolled thrice weekly. (Mon, Wed, Fri) 

 All 8 hard floor Tennis Courts and pickleball courts are blown daily to clean debris. 

 All Clubhouse grounds, including parking lots, sidewalks, pool deck, playgrounds, etc., are blown 

daily. 

 The playgrounds are being pressure washed weekly. All the equipment safety checked and 

tightened. 

 All pools, splash pad, spa, and fountains are maintained daily to FL DoH standards. 

 All the outside recessed lighting covers have been removed and cleaned, removing all bugs and 

webs.  

 

Current and Ongoing Project 

 All clubhouse rugs have been shampooed and deep cleaned for stain and marking removal. 

 Interior touch-up paints are complete throughout the clubhouse to restore the original 

aesthetic. 

 A specialist is being consulted to provide services to properly clean/preserve the buildings rock 

foundation and front stairs/entryway surface. 

Page 227



CATEGORY PATRON NON-PROFIT NON-PATRON 

CLUB RENTAL FEES AND DEPOSITS 

Page 228


	Avenir Community Development District - Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	July 1, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-10 – Adopting Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget

	New Business
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-11 – Adopting Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting Schedule
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-12 – Adopting Goals and Objectives
	Consider Approval of SUA Western Service Area Model Development and Fire Flow AnalysisScope of Services and Corresponding Consulting Services Agreement
	Consider Approval of Land Swap Agreement and Corresponding Engineer’s Report
	Consider Approval of PBGPD License Plate Reader Request and Flock Safety Property Agreement
	Consider Ratification of Execution of Avenir Charter School Plat
	Consider Approval of SPF Underground Agreement (Bypass Road)
	Consider Approval of Annual Engineer’s Report
	Discussion Regarding Basketball Court
	Legislative Update

	Change Orders
	Consider Approval of Latite Roofing Additional Work Authorization ($16,396)
	Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 001 ($177,972.80)
	Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 002 ($54,193.19)
	Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 003 ($17,484.48)
	Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 004 ($89,166.86)
	Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 005 ($79,985.50)
	Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 007 ($34,148.09)
	Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 008 ($10,986.92)
	Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 009 ($11,084.63)
	Consider Approval of Hawkins Construction CO No 010 ($1,105,079.95)
	Consider Approval of SPF Underground CO No 3 ($13,280.80)

	Clubhouse
	Clubhouse Management Update
	Discussion Regarding Proposed Club Fee Schedule for FY 2024/2025





